\ &
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

N

/

Notice of a public meeting of

Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management

Committee
To: Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fenton (Vice-Chair),
Baker, Fisher, Hollyer, Musson, Norman, Pearson and
Rowley
Date: Monday, 7 November 2022
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West
Offices (F045)
AGENDA
1. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they
might have in respect of business on this agenda, if they have not
already done so in advance on the Register of Interests.
2. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)
To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 03
October 2022.
3. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines are set as 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the

www.york.gov.uk



management of public participation at our meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Thursday, 03
November 2022.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration
form or the meeting, please contact Democratic Services. Contact
details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we made some changes to how we ran council
meetings, including facilitating remote participation by public
speakers. See our updates (www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy)
for more information on meetings and decisions.

City Centre Access - Action Plan Update (Pages 7 - 60)

This report provides an update to the committee on the City Centre
Access Action Plan.

Budget Setting Overview (Pages 61 - 66)

This report outlines the Council’s approach to budget setting and
provides an update on some of the current financial challenges.

Scrutiny Review Support Budget 2023/24 (Pages 67 - 72)
This report sets out the current position in relation to available
Council funding for research in support of scrutiny review work.
Work Plan (Pages 73 - 74)

To consider the Work Plan.

Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy

Democracy Officer:

Name: Jane Meller
Telephone: (01904) 555209
E-mail: jane.meller@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please
contact the Democratic Services Officer responsible for
servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EPEAEMIESRHEEREESS (cantonese)
I3 52T AN NS SIET (7T (@CS A | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Baltsh)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
s e s DG T e, (ura)
@ (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny
Management Committee

Date 3 October 2022

Present Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fenton (Vice-
Chair), Fisher, Hollyer, Norman, Pearson and
Rowley

Apologies Councillors Baker and Musson

Officers Present Patrick Looker, Finance Manager
lan Cunningham, Head of Business
Intelligence
Helen Whiting, Head of HR and OD Corporate
Services

Pauline Stuchfield, Director of Customer and
Corporate Services

David Walker, Head of Customer and
Exchequer Services

Roy Grant, Head of ICT

Bryn Roberts, Director of Governance and
Monitoring Officer

Dawn Steel, Head of Civic, Democratic and
Scrutiny Services

6. Declarations of Interest (5.30 pm)

At this point in the meeting, Members were asked to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might have
in respect of business on this agenda, if they had not already done so in
advance on the Register of Interests.

Cllr Crawshaw declared a personal, non-prejudicial interest in relation to
item 7, as his mother was a member of the Steering Group for Digital
Inclusion.

7. Minutes (5.31 pm)

The Chair noted that an agreement from the Leader to write to the relevant
minister had been omitted from the draft minutes and that the following
should be added to the bullet points on page 4 of the minutes:



Page 2

That the Leader would write to the relevant minister to express Members
disappointment in hearing about the Devolution Deal via a press release
and to request that Members were in future notified in advance of any
information being released to the press.

Resolved: Subject to the inclusion of the above wording,
that the minutes of the last meeting held on 05
September 2022 be approved and signed as a
correct record.

8. Public Participation (5.32 pm)

It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

Councillor Kallum Taylor addressed the Committee and raised concerns
relating to items 6 and 7 on the agenda. He highlighted the difficulties
residents had in accessing council services, through the call centre and
digitally. He reported that there were lengthy waiting times and out of date
web content.

9. 2022/23 Finance and Performance Monitor 1 (5.36 pm)

The Finance Manager, and the Head of Business Intelligence, presented
the 2022/23 Finance and Performance Monitor 1 report. The Finance
Manager highlighted a forecast gross overspend of £8.7m, which with £2m
mitigations, was expected to be £6.7m net. Several additional financial
pressures were identified including the pay award, price inflation and the
increase in interest rates. Within Corporate Services, the expected
overspend was £1.2m and there was expected to be a slight underspend in
Treasury.

The Head of Business Intelligence noted a slight increase in staff sickness
and an improvement in the response to Freedom of Information (FOI)
requests and complaints.

Officers were asked a number of questions covering: FOI requests; an
analysis of complaints performance; loans made by CYC; sickness data;
government financial support for local authorities (LA); the budget deficit
and increased costs; reducing costs; reserves and contingencies and local
businesses.

Following discussion, the following action points were agreed:



Page 3

e To provide further detail on the cost of FOI's and the types of
individuals and businesses who request them

e To provide a link to complaint data, comparing the percentage of
complaints that were responded to entirely against the number of
complaints received

e To provide validated customer satisfaction data (paragraph 31
refers),

e To request the Children, Education and Communities (CEC) and
Health and Adult Social Care (HASC) Scrutiny Committees have a
close watching brief on the overspend and mitigations in the areas of

their remit.
Resolved:

I.  To note the finance and performance information
and the actions needed to manage the financial
position

li. To action the points outlined above.

Reason: To ensure expenditure is kept within the approved

budget.

10. Progress of the Organisational Development Plan (6.12 pm)

The Head of HR and OD Corporate Services gave an update to the
Committee on progress of the Organisational Development Plan.

The Officer responded to a variety of questions from Members covering
hybrid working and communicating the new way of working to staff,
behaviour change management, recruitment difficulties, staff absence, exit
interviews, HR support for managers and reasons for staff turnover.

During the discussion it was agreed that this item should return to the
Committee in six months’ time to measure progress. The Head of HR
agreed to include comparable recruitment and retention metrics as well as
the results from the employee survey / focus groups.

Resolved:

I.  That an update on the progress of the Organisational
Development Plan be added to the Committee Work
Plan for six months’ time.

ii. That the progress made to date on the OD plan, as
outlined in Annex 1, was noted.



Page 4

Reason: To allow the Committee to scrutinise the delivery of a
resilient, skilled, and capable workforce to achieve the
Council Plan.

11. Customer Centre Performance (6.51 pm)

The Head of Customer and Exchequer Services presented a report on the
current telephone performance pressures in the Customer Centre within
the Customer Services Team. He explained the difficulties in recruitment
and retention and noted 7 vacancies existed currently. This had resulted in
longer wait times for customers and an increase in abuse to staff. It was
reported that improvements had led to a decrease in phone traffic and a
rolling recruitment programme was in place.

Members asked a variety of questions covering the call back facility, the
working location of the customer service team, support for staff, access to
workflow calendars and dealing with abusive calls.

Following discussion, actions were identified for the Head of Customer and
Exchequer Services and/or Head of Business Intelligence:

e A breakdown of the number of calls that went direct to Customer
Services and the number of calls that went directly to the Parking
team to be provided for the Digital ResPark Scrutiny Review in

December.
e Details on the length of calls to the Customer Centre to be circulated
to Members.
Resolved:
I. To provide a further update to the Committee in the
next 3-4 months.
ii. To formally recognise and thank the Customer
Service team for their continued hard work.
lii. That the report be noted.
Reason: To secure scrutiny of council service performance

where it impacts on customer experience.

12. Digital Inclusion Update (7.37 pm)

Members received a report from the Head of ICT which provided an update
on Digital Inclusion. He highlighted the workstream priorities and noted



Page 5

that since the publication of the report, Project Gigabit, to which paragraphs
27-29 referred, there had been a recovery of slippage in the timeline.

Barbara Swinn, Head of Strategy and Engagement for York Explore,
explained York Explore’s role in leading and supporting partnership
development. She welcomed the funding received from CYC (City of York
Council) which had provided for a part time post to co-ordinate these
activities.

Members asked questions including, learning that had taken place and how
this could be shared with other areas, the scope for free Wi-Fi networks in
areas of social housing and the timescale for Project Gigabit.

[19:51, CllIr Rowley BEM left the meeting]

Resolved: That the report and its content be noted.

Reason: To keep the Committee updated on digital inclusion
activities and to inform future scrutiny work in this area.

13. Work Plan (8.02 pm)

Members considered the corporate scrutiny work plan covering the next

meeting of this Committee and the meetings of the other Scrutiny

Committees up until 07 November 2022.

Resolved: That the work plan be noted.

Reason: To ensure that the Committee has a planned programme of work
in place and an overview of the other Scrutiny Committees.

Cllr J Crawshaw, Chair
[The meeting started at 5.30 pm and finished at 8.04 pm].



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda ltem 4

COUNCIL

n,

Customer and Corporate 7 November 2022
Services Scrutiny
Management Committee

Report of the Director of Transport, Environment and Planning
Portfolio of the Executive Member for Transport and Executive Member
for Economy and Strategic Planning

City Centre Access — Action Plan Update
Summary

1. In November 2021 the Executive, following three scrutiny
meetings and extensive consultation, considered Police and
Counter terrorism advice regarding access to the City Centre. On
balance Executive made the decision to reduce the risk to life
caused by the use of vehicles as a weapon in the City Centres
most heavily pedestrianised streets. Deciding to remove as many
vehicles as possible from accessing the whole footstreets area
during pedestrianised hours. That advice has not changed and
has been reiterated to executive Members by the Police and
National security advisors, and the hostile mitigation measures
are contracted to be completed in summer 2023.

2. Advice from North Yorkshire Police and the Counter Terrorism Unit
(found in Annex C) requested to consider new measures to reduce
the risk of a vehicle as weapon attack in the footstreets, particularly
considering York’s historic and narrow streets and high number of
people visiting the city centre. Particular vulnerabilities were
identified in relation to the areas which host some of the city’s
largest seasonal events and were based on the targeting of similar
events across Europe by terrorists. Risk Assessments have taken
place regularly through the multi-agency York Protect and Prepare
Group convened under Safer York Partnership to drive forward an
action plan to mitigate the threat of terrorism through local delivery
of the Government’'s CONTEST strategy.

3. Recognising the impact that the decision would have in particular
on Blue Badge holders and the need to mitigate impacts, asuite of
accompanying decisions were also made. Amongst these was a



Page 8

report on the “Strategic Review of City Centre Access”, which
included an action plan to improve access. This report provides an
update on the delivery of the action plan. The update summary
can be found in Annex A.

4. At the full Council meeting on the 20 October 2022 the Council
received a number of representations forming a petition relating to
the removal of the blue badge exemption in the foot streets.
These representations formed a petition titled “Reverse the Ban”.
A summary of comments is included in Annex B.

Recommendations:
5. The Committee is recommended to:

I. Note the update on the “City Centre Access - Action Plan”
Annex A;

ii. Consider the petition presented to full Council as required
by the Constitution.

Reason: To provide ongoing scrutiny of the implementation of
mitigation measures agreed by Executive and consider petitions
presented to Council as required by the Constitution.

Background
6. In November 2021, the Executive considered a number of reports
including

o “City Centre Strategic Vision - Adoption of Vision and Next
Steps”,

e “Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car
Parking”,

e “Consideration of Changes to the City Centre Traffic
Regulation Order”.

Links to these are provided in the background documents at the end
of the report.

7.  The last of these reports was to give effect to the Police Counter
Terrorist Advice to make the City Centre as car free as possible
and install Hostile Vehicle Measures. A subsequent Executive
Member for Transport decision removed the majority of exemptions



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 9

that permitted access, this has come into effect at the end of
September this year. The Police advice has not changed and the
contract for the hostile mitigation measures is expected to start in
the new year and be completed Summer 2023.

In making the decision to remove vehicles from the foot street
area, the Executive recognised the access impacts of such a
decision, particularly on blue badge holders. In response,
Executive adopted actions (“Strategic Review of City Centre
Access — Action Plan”) to improve and support access in and
around the foot streets, as well as the “My City Centre Vision” as a
long-term ten-year vision that would support an accessible and
thriving city centre. It was recognised that mitigation opportunities
should continue to be reviewed to support the promotion of a safe
and accessible city centre.

City Centre Access — Action Plan

An update on the current progress of delivering actions in the Action
Plan can be found in Annex A.

A number of the actions agreed at November Executive had
significant dependencies. These are specifically updated as
follows:

Access Officer Action

One of the first actions requested by the Executive was the creation
of an Access Officer post. A number of subsequent actions were
then assigned to the Access Officer.

A recruitment process for the Access Officer should have
concluded before this committee considers this paper and Access
Specialist Consultants, MIMA, have been brought in to support
the work. MIMA will support the following in the first instance.

e Consultation on improving pavement café licensing rules
¢ Installing additional benches in the City Centre

e Identifying the two priority car parks for investment in Gold
Standard access

A separate consultant will undertake the City Centre Shuttle work.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Page 10

Dropped Kerbs Action

The dependency for this action was funding. The programme of
dropped kerbs was identified in the Action Plan as to be funded by
a Department for Transport funding stream. Unfortunately, this
element of the funding bid was not successful. Despite this, 8
additional dropped kerbs have been installed on Stonegate and the
existing ones refurbished on Colliergate and Church Street. The
work carried out in these locations highlighted the challenges of
cellars and buried utilities can impose.

The Executive Member for Transport in March this year received a
report detailing the approach to dropped kerbs. Due to the lack of

funding from the Department for Transport, the council re prioritised
to deliver a dropped kerbs programme to the same level of funding.

Since the funding was approved by in March 2022 the designwork
has commenced on a programme of dropped kerbs and
implementation will happen on Fossgate later in the Autumn and
Low Petergate, Blake Street and Lendal in the Spring.

City Centre Bus Shuttle Feasibility Action

Through the scrutiny process, a trial of a City Centre Bus Shuttle
service was identified as a potential mitigation. This was included
in the “City Centre Access — Action Plan” by Executive in November
2021. The Action Plan was clear that the first step as part of this
action was coproduction with involvement of the access officer and
potential services users to ensure their requirements shaped future
proposals. This is particularly important given this mitigation
emerged through scrutiny discussion rather than through direct
engagement with blue badge holders, unlike the other actions in
the action plan.

The Feasibility Study was dependent on the award of Bus Service
Improvement Plan (BSIP) funding.

The Council has been told it will receive this funding in November
and part of the bid has been specified to trial this service.
However, due to delays in the announcement of the funding and
then dependencies on making the Enhanced Bus Partnership, it
was felt that Transport funding would be useful to expediate this
process. The decision to do this was made at the July 2022
Executive meeting.

By bringing forward coproduction on possible vehicle and service
options, which would include the identification of specific user



21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

27.

Page 11

needs, review of the vehicle type and the physical experience of
some different vehicles, a trial of the service could be brought
forward sooner.

A consultant has been appointed to undertake this work. Officers
will be imminently working with the consultant on a programme.

Current City Centre Operation

As detailed above, the pavement café licenses issued as part of the
regulations put in place on response to the pandemic remain in
place. There are currently 115 pavement cafes across the city.
This is roughly double the number that existed prior to COVID with
the requirement for planning permission.

Consultation with businesses and residents is currently ongoing to
explore improved café license regulations, which would take
account of access impact of the operation of the licenses. The
results of the consultation and recommended changes in
guidance is set to be reported to a meeting of the Executive in
November.

The decisions taken by Executive in November have removed the
vast majority of vehicles from the City Centre, in the future this will
be physically enforced through Hostile Vehicle Mitigation
Measures.

The pedestrianised footstreet hours currently operate until 5:00 pm
as per the permanent Traffic Regulation Order. The return to 5pm
in the footstreets follows the decision, made by the council’s
Executive in July 2022, to postpone a statutory consultation to
permanently extend footstreet hours to 7pm.

26. The decision to postpone this consultation aims to provide the
opportunity to consider the lived experience of pavement cafes
under a revised licensing guidance, wait for more clarity from the
Government on the long-term legislative framework for pavement
cafes, and make further progress with the delivery of the City
Centre Access — Action Plan.

Petition

A petition was received at full council titled “reverse the ban” and the
subject is the decision at the November 2021 Executive meeting, on
the advice of Police Counter Terror, to remove the blue badge
exemption during footstreet hours. A summary of the petition can be
found in Annex B.



Page 12

Council Plan

28.

The proposals are well aligned with the aims of the Council’s Plan
2019-2023.

e Well-paid jobs and an inclusive economy
e Getting around sustainably
e Safe communities and culture for all

e Creating homes and world-class infrastructure

Implications

29.

30.

31.

32.

Financial

The £80k cost of the hostile vehicle mitigation temporary measures
for Christmas 2022 and the £40k ongoing security for TRO
compliance until permanent measures are completed will be
funded from within existing transport budgets. The one-off £50k
funding required for the city centre bus shuttle feasibility can be met
from transport reserves.

Equalities

The Council recognises its Public Sector Equality Duty under
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (to have due regard to the
need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any
other prohibited conduct; advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons
who do not share it and foster good relations between persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it in the exercise of a public authority’s functions). These
duties were considered in detail when undertaking the Executive
decision in November 2021 and subsequent decsions. The
process of co-production detailed in this report will identify any
equalities implications when implementing mitigations and these
will be addressed in future reports.

The Action Plan captured the mitigations for the decision to remove
the exemption for blue badge holders from the City Centre
Footstreets that was considered under a detailed equality impact
assessment.

However, as detailed proposals come forward, such as the results
of the consultation on pavement cafes and the City Centre Shuttle



Page 13

Bus Study Feasibility, they would each need a specific equality
Impact assessment of its own.

Legal
Traffic Restriction Orders (TRO)

33. The Executive decision of November 2021 implementation
complied with the Council’s power to make a permanent TRO is set
outin Section 6 of Part 1 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Before
a TRO is made, the Council should ensure that the relevant
statutory procedures set out in the Local Authorities Traffic Orders
(Procedure) (England & Wales) Regulations 1996 (LATOR) are
complied with including the requirement for formal consultation and
advertisement in the local press. As objections were received
these objections were duly considered.

Risk Management

34. Co-production ensures the risk that the proposals do not meet the
needs of intended users.

Contact Details

Authors: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

James Gilchrist Neil Ferris

Director of Transport, Planning Corporate Director of Place

and Environment

james.gilchrist@york.gov.uk Report .~ | Date  27/10/22

Approved

Dave Atkinson

Head of Highways and
Transport
dave.atkinson@york.gov.uk

Wards Affected: Guildhall, Micklegate, Fishergate

For further information please contact the author of the report.


mailto:james.gilchrist@york.gov.uk
mailto:dave.atkinson@york.gov.uk

Page 14

Background papers

Executive - 18 November 2021
e My City Centre Strategic Vision - Adoption of Vision and Next

Steps
e Strategic Reviews of City Centre Access and Council Car Parking
e Consideration of Changes to the City Centre Traffic Regulation
Order

Executive - 18 July 2022
e Update on City Centre Access and Pavement café licensing.

Officer Decision 19 September 2021
e Pavement cafes: enforcement and accessibility (under Business
and Planning Act 2020)

Annexes

Annex A Strategic Review of City Centre Access — Action Plan
update

Annex B Petition

Annex C Annexes from Executive, November 2021



ANNEX A

City Centre Action plan update October 2022

Action Plan

Recommendation Required to Budget Action Owner Timesca

implement required

Funding Source Update RAG rating

les for

_ To be funded Director of Spring Recruitment of Access Officer
Create an Access Officer To be funded through £24Kk per through existing Customer and 2022 almost complete.
post existing budgets annum budgets Communities

An access consultant, MIMA,
has been appointed to support
on
Pavement café licensing
(including dropped kerbs), the
placement of benches and rest
areas and identifying improved
routes in the City centre

DIV o] R IM Aol @S E eIl TO be delivered by the Priority action for the Access

[/ RN ARI)  Access Officer but . Officer
: To be delivered by December
(o [F5F=10] (1o IR [ 1o ]V o ISIETaTol Would need to cost any None . Access
the Access Officer Officer 2022
stakeholders proposals and seek
appropriate funding for
Consult on permanently Undertake Statutory o Director of Transport, Pending Not yet commenced due to
extending the footstreets consultation None Existing Resource Environment and current legislative
until 7pm Planning context

Disabled Access

GT abed



Implement disabled
bays as per statutory
consultation, and

continue to explore
additional locations on

None

Existing Transport
Budgets

Head of Highways
and Transport

February
2022

9T abed



Recommendation

Invest in Shopmobility to
increase awareness of
the service

Access Officer to work
with Shopmobility, expand
the provision of mobility
aids, and meeting the
needs of

service users
Investing in the Dial-&-

Ride service, to improve
awareness

Investing in the Dial-&-
Ride service, to better
meet the needs of
service users

Work with micro mobility
operator (Tier) to explore

the roll out of mobility
aids at key points across
the city

Required to Budget
implement required

CYC promotion £10k (one
support Additional off)
grant

To be delivered by TBC
the Access Officer

CYC promotion
support Additional
grant off)

£10k (one

£50k (one
off)

No —
Commercia
| Operator

Funding Source

Covid Recovery
contingency

Covid Recovery
contingency

Covid Recovery
Contingency

Not Required

Action Owner

Head of Highways
and Transport

Access
Officer

Head of Highways
and Transport

Head of Highways
and Transport

Head of Highways
and Transport

Timesca
les for

March
2022

To be picked up by the Access

Officer
Summer

2022

March
2022

Proposals 1o pe completed in conjunction with
Summer the City Centre Shuttle
2022 Feasibility

Summer  Ongoing lobbying, considering as
2022 part of national roll out

/T obed



Recommendation Required to Budget Funding Action Owner Timesca
implement required Source les for
Continue to work with On-going To be picked up by the Access
disabled people to assess To be delivered by No Not Required Access Officer
what constitutes a mobility T AeeEss Ofee Officer
aid and should be
permitted
in the footstreet areas.
Improved routes into Dropped kerbs, £250k one  Active Travel Fund Head of Spring Active travel fund bid was rejected
and around the city paving off (subject to Highways and 2022 by DfT. Executive approved funding
centre, included successful bid) or Transport to progress this programme in
improved paving and prioritised /Access Officer March date.
dropped kerbs Transport Budgets Through works in Stonegate 8 new
dropped kerbs have been added.
Further works planned in autumn 0
(Fossgate) and in spring as set out 8
in report. This is being supported by @
the Access Consultant l;o
Additional seating to be Locations to be co- Access Officer This is currently being worked
provided at key points designed with £15,000 Public Realm Summer through by the Access
along routes in to and disabled groups, to one off budgets 2022 consultant, MIMA
around the be delivered
city centre by the
Improve access to Work with stakeholders Subject to Director of Customer Initiative
disabled Changing and Communities
toilets in the city centre and partners to improve Places bid for launch
physical
through multi-partner access improvements planned
for
provision Support Home Instead Spring
and YDRF to progress 2022

the “Take a Seat+”

initiative TBC




Page 19




Recommendation

Carry out a feasibility
study

for a dedicated shuttle
service for disabled
people and those with
mobility issues

Improve awareness of
Blue Badge parking
and services which are

available to improve

access to the city centre
including
toilets, accessible routes

Required to
implement

Initial engagement
carried

out by Access Officer
Study already carried
out, further work
required to understand
service user needs and
requirements

to inform any future
proposals

Identify the
improvements as listed
in this action plan and
compile in to single
point of reference

Budget
required

£50k one off

No

Funding Source

Bus Service

Improvement Plan

funding (subject to
successful bid)

Existing Transport
budgets

Action Owner

Head of Highways
and Transport

Head of
Highways and
Transport
/Access Officer

Timesca
les for
delivery

Successful BISP bid, but no funds
released yet by DfT, however,
existing funding has been allocated to
progress this piece and

Subject to
successfu
| funding
bid

Decemb
er 2022

0z abed



Recommendation Required to

implement

Work with the Quality Bus
Partnership,
and local disability

representative groups to
review how drivers
prioritise wheelchair
users’ access and

make Class 3 access
training

Improving existing city
centre cycle routes

Improved route and
signing along High
Petergate, Minster
Yard, Deangate,
Goodramgate,
Aldwark, Hungate,
Navigation Road and
Walmgate
Upgrade existing
cycle parking
facilities, introduce
provision for adapted
R AR cycles andlook at city
parking centre lockers/
secure
storage

Budget Funding Source Action Owner
required
No Access

Officer

Cycling, e-scooters and e-bikes

£250k one LTP 4 (part of wider Head of
off package of Highways and
improvements Transport
totalling
£600,000)

Active Travel Fund
(subject to
successful bid)

Head of Highways
and Transport

Active Travel Fund
£150k one

(subject to
off

successful bid)

Links to BSIP and Enhanced
Partnership and representation of
disability groups in the partnership.
The Enhanced partnership has now
been made and will be brought
through the governance to consider

Active Travel Funding was not
received and will be considered as
part of LTP4 action plans. Local
Cycling and Walking Infrastructure
plan now in development and these
will be identified through this process
and prioritised for future Active
Travel funding bids.

T¢ obed



Recommendation Required to Budget Funding Action Owner Timesca

Source

implement required [ {e]g

Undertake a feasibility Carry out a feasibility =~ £300k one Head of Highways Complete

study for a city centre study and pilot scheme off Defra and Transport
transhipment hub for looking in
freight delivery to low emission
deliveries
Work with the BID to Not Head of

continue to understand required . Regeneration and
: Existing resource

the evolving nature of Economy

food delivery businesses

in the

city centre

Ongoing

Clearer signage indicating Unmet Demand To be carried out by Head of Public
location of taxi ranks Survey e
(Clifford Street)

Spring

licencing team Protection
2022

Potential new evening Unmet Demand To be carried out by Head of Public
rank on Piccadilly Survey licencing team Protection

22 abed



Recommendation

Forum to be facilitated
between Taxi
operators/drivers and
representation from
disabled groups to discuss
how the taxis could better
meet the needs of service
users

Required to Budget
implement required
Representation to be
invited to the Taxi
Association Forum

Funding Source

To be carried out by

licencing team

Action Owner

Head of Public
Protection

Timesca
les for

Nov/Dec
2021

ez abed



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX B

PETITION TO CITY OF YORK COUNCIL ON BEHALF OF REVERSE THE BAN, 20™ OCTOBER 2022

The wording on the postcards that were collected reads as follows:

Reverse the ban...

& (&) (=] (&) &) (#) D

...re-open York to Blue Badge Holders

Dear Keith Aspden, Leader of City of York Councll

Gz abed

| urge the Lib Dem-Green council administration to reverse the ban on Blue Badge holders entering the city
centre. Other cities have addressed security concerns without excluding disabled people and York should do
the same. As a Human Rights City, York should not be acting in this way.

Name:

Postcode: Resident: o Visitor: O

Please note that ‘Reverse-The-Ban’ is non party-political



Please add your own words below if you wish:

Reverse-The-Ban collected 2,734 postcards of which 2074 were from residents and 660 were from visitors, including people who work
in York or visit regularly from the surrounding area and tourists.

Reverse-The-Ban is a coalition of 27 disability- and age-related and allied organisations in the City of York that have come together
with the aim of reversing the permanent Blue Badge ban in designated parts of the city www.reversetheban.co.uk:

York Accessibility Action

York Access Hub

York Carers Centre

York CVS

York Cycle Campaign

York Dementia Collaborative
York Disability Rights Forum
York Human Rights City Network
York Inspirational Kids (YIKS)
York LGBT Forum

York ME Community

York Older People’s Assembly
York People First

York Sight Loss Council

Accessible Arts and Media

Age UK York

Ageing Without Children (AWOC) York
Associazione Premio Eleanor Worthington-ODV
(York-Urbino)

Different Strokes - York

Healthwatch York

Lollipop

MySight York

Older Citizens Advocacy York

St Sampson’s Social Centre

The Wilberforce Trust

Unite Community York

United Taxi Trade York comprising:

9z abed


http://www.reversetheban.co.uk/

O O O O O

Station Taxi Association
Independent Taxi Association
Hackney Carriage Association
York Private Hire Association
York taxi action group

/.2 abed



Page 28

DISCLAIMER: Reproduced below are 767 additional comments that individuals/couples
added to their postcards. Reverse the Ban has reproduced these ‘as written’ in order to
convey the writer(s)’s views; the only changes made were to remove any identifiable
information. We carry no responsibility for the wording itself.

There were a total of 767 additional comments made on the postcards

‘ (i) Additional Comments from Residents
1 Equality is a right not a privilege
2 It feels like disabled people have been stripped of freedom by being denied access to blue
badge parking in York city centre pedestrian area
3 The ban on parking for blue badge holders is highly discriminatory!
4 Never been in town since the ban
5 This year’s exclusion of blue badge holders is a disgrace!!
6 Everyone should be able to fully access the city centre
7 | feel ashamed that ‘Make it York’ excludes the disabled
8 Please connect with the Liberal Democrat strong commitment to human rights
9 This ban is dreadful, non-democratic and against human rights
10 While trying to keep the city centre traffic free is an excellent aspiration, exceptions must
be made for blue badge holders
11 Policy is excluding not including
12 Itis time to do the right thing and open up the city to cabs and cars for the disabled
13 An unbelievable violation of human rights that diminishes the name of this good city
14 | find this very hard to understand
15 Not acceptable, is it?
16 Bring back badges or get something equivalent please
17 Please, please for the sake of compassion and human rights: REVERSE THE BAN!!! Thank
you
18 Find it outrageous and disgusting that a lobby group came in to talk about how this would
affect them and the whole council voted to exclude disabled people from their own city.
You do not represent the people of York
19 Let disabled people into your city
20 Shame on every person who voted for this. May you hang your heads in shame. How do
you sleep at night?
21 Unable to get to appointments in city centre
22 Disabled rights are human rights
23 Shameful of a “progressive” party to enact this ban
24 Disabled people deserve basic rights at the very minimum. The council has acted wrongly
in this situation and | sincerely hope the matter is resolved
25 | mean honestly what the s***?? York’s already terrible for accessibility
26 Not expected of such a council



27
28
29
30
31
32

33

34

35
36
37

38

39
40
41
42
43
44

45
46
47
48
49
50

Page 29

I’'m a Green member and it’s a disgrace

Justice

An injury to one is an injury to all!

Cannot get to bank — have to go to Malton

A city for all!

Not enough consultation has happened nor actual listening to the issues surrounding.
This is an affront to human rights

As a local resident in York | feel that | am excluded [from] my own city to access, due to
my support needs and disability. | feel that they have done this underhand without any
consultations in a fair manner and | feel that being a local...... | am now excluded

(all from one person) | do hope you will succeed, so that disabled people can access the
city, and also bring back the trade to the shops and organisations.

In February, during the time of Storm Dennis, it was my 94th birthday, and my family had
booked a special lunch at The Ivy. We knew no cars would be allowed, so my daughter
and | took a taxi - only to find that was not allowed near, even with my Blue Badge, | had
a long (for me) and painful walk, in the wind and rain. It was even worse after the lunch
as we had to walk to a taxi rank and had a long wait, No taxi was available to pick us

up. My daughter and | were literally soaked through our coats, and very cold.

I now have to go to Monk's Cross or Vanguard to visit a shop, optician etc,

| understand the need to guard against terrorism, but | doubt whether old
and/or disabled people are banned from the centre of London.

Good luck to your efforts.

Please reverse the ban

This ban prevents me taking my wheelchair-bound mother into town

Get rid of that Andy D’Agorne. What does my city look like! Cliffords Tower, how do | get
there and where do | park? | hope to God that man A D’Agorne never needs a blue badge
or maybe he can put it on the front of his bike. | for one feel suicidal. | want my city back.
Please reverse this ban. Disabled people need the previous situation to be re-instated.
Thank you

My Dad’s a blue badge holder, can’t get anywhere near the town centre

Disgraceful attitude of CoYC

Please take note, life is hard enough for people

| feel very strongly about this as a York resident

Please reverse the ban

How are disabled people supposed to manage? Unless this is an aberration, this is
deliberate!

Put all residents first!

Disabled people have a right to park!

Definitely need to let blue badge holders in city

Disgraceful decision

Impossible to get to shops/appts/banks without in town parking

Stupid



51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65

66
67
68

69

70

71

72

73
74
75
76
77
78

79
80
81
82
83

Page 30

You couldn’t make it up!

Ban is disgraceful, should be banned

| am embarrassed to live in a city which makes such discriminatory decisions

How else do you think these disabled people can get around

Please do something as soon as possible

My mum is 96 and needs me to have parking access

All should be welcomed

Disgraceful policy to deny people with disabilities parking rights

Life is hard enough as it is

You are discriminating again your residents and visitors

Blue badge holders should be allowed in the city!!

My father is disabled and this really limits his access to the city centre

My husband has been disabled for 40 years. Very disgusted at York City Council

It’s hard enough people accepting being disabled without worrying about parking issues
Blue Badge holders need to be able to be as active participants in York’s city as anyone
else

| think it’s disgraceful

Should be some facilities for disabled parking

Look at how other cities are dealing with security concerns without excluding disabled
people and follow their examples. If people want to do damage they can do just as much
on foot — see the Manchester Arenal

| have been an informal carer for a friend who recently died and used a walker and/or a
wheelchair. She found the ban a great inconvenience and impacted on her getting about
York should be carrying the flag and leading the way if they’re to be considered a human
rights city! Shame on you!

The car parks are too far away from the centre to allow people with disabilities to get into
York

Frankly, it’s disgraceful. There is too much of a personal agenda being applied here. This
should not be ‘driven’ by one man. York Council needs to get us back on track. BAN THE
ELECTRIC SCOOTERS. ALLOW BLUE BADGE HOLDERS IN!

Discriminating against disabled people. All people should have access to the city centre
Anyone disabled needs to be able to use blue badges in York city centre

Disability have rights to have access to town

This ban is in breach of a range of fundamental rights. It must be reversed!

This ban makes York inaccessible. Do not alienate people who need badges

This ban would be a breach of citizen’s fundamental human rights — how dare you call
yourselves the representatives of England’s first Human Rights City!!!

Re-open York to blue badge holders. This ban is not fair

The issue of the vehicle as a ‘safe space’ is a crucial one

| think you have put money over people’s rights, it’s a shame

| think the blue badge should stay in operation

The local authority should be pro-active in making all areas of the city accessible to Blue
Badge holders. To not do this demonstrates an unwillingness to include people who are
at a disadvantage because of inability. York Should be a city of exclusion!



84

85

86
87

88
89

90
91
92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101

102
103

104

Page 31

You are discriminating against people with disability. Too much space given to cyclists
and scooters. People do not ask to be disabled

Please let the disability return for disabled people and put them before things for tourists
and people who are able bodied

Definitely want one [reverse the ban]

My father-in-law is 95 and has COPD. This ban is removing his right of access to the city
centre

| am disabled with multiple points of arthritis and am awaiting a mobility scooter.

| think at least one route into and out of the city centre should be made available to us,
preferably one for entry from North, South, East and West.

Can’t take my car into the centre but have nearly been hit by delivery cars numerous time
I miss when York felt like home

As a carer for my mum and partner | can’t manage to take them both into city centre any
more

As a Blue Badge holder my life has been worsened dramatically by the ban. E.g. | can’t
access City Screen early evening any more and places like Bettys

| am truly ashamed to be living in a city that does not let blue badge holders into the city
centre and hope to see this reversed

The impact of the ban has taken an intense toll on the emotional and mental health of
myself, my friends and family. Visiting my beloved city centre is no longer an option;
‘allowing’ us to enter before 10.30 and after 7pm casts disabled people and Blue Badge
holders as second class citizens. | fell in love with York age 14 and moved here at 18.
Now, age 35, | am unwelcome.

Please remember we all have human rights and being able to access our beautiful city
should not be taken away. Not everybody can access it without their highly specialised
vehicles

Disabled and less mobile people need protecting from discrimination and degrading
treatment by the City of York Councillors. These councillors are taking away our freedom,
equality, opportunities, our right to socialise and enjoy activities in the city centre. We
are patronised with suggestions of cycling, shuttle buses, benches and what’s to say they
will even be available when required. Wheelchairs and mobility scooters don’t work for
everyone and the terrain isn’t always suitable anyway. Citing anti-terrorism measures
implies that blue badge holders are likely to be engaged in terrorist activities! What have
we don’t that offends the council. Why do they hate us so much? This feels like the thin
end of the wedge. What have they got planned for us next | ask myself.

Our lives would be much enhanced if my husband, who has Parkinsons, could get nearer
to the city centre!

This is a very regressive policy

It's a basic human right

| am a carer for a lady with disabilities and she regularly goes into York centre and this has
made life very difficult for her. | also agree that the security issues could absolutely be
addressed in another way.

When “all” does not include everyone we are on a slippery slope

| am deeply embarrassed that my city does not welcome disabled people and furious that
the council are so dismissive of our rights to move around the city — on our own, with
family or friends — without any good reason

| got a blue badge purely to have better access to the city via taxi; now it is useless



105
106

107

108
109
110
111
112

113
114
115
116

117
118
119
120
121
122
123

124
125
126
127
128

129
130
131

Page 32

We should more rights that cage tables and buildings!

Disabled people deserve access to everything able-bodied people do: we shop, have
appointments, meet friends + family, we party and do fun activities. You’re blocking us
from living our lives!

York: there’s no point being a tourist city, if you don’t look after residents who live here
all year round

WHY

Aridiculous & totally insensitive decision —and from the LIB DEMS

Everyone has a right to be in our city. Reverse the ban!

This ableism is bullshit!

As a parent of a disabled young person it is criminal to exclude them easy access to the
city. as a city of sanctuary the disabled should be equally welcome

It is surely possible to make our city work for disabled people

Where are our Human Rights?

Mum has blue badge. Unable to take her to shops, banks in York

My elderly mum of 92yrs who we can no longer get her into the city for her
clothing/shoes etc

York should be open to all!

Please make York more disabled friendly!

This is an outrage in a world of equality of opportunity

Stop hating the disabled. What have they done to deserve this????

This is incredibly ableist. You need to do better

My disabled mother in law can no longer come into town!

This decision of the council has negatively affected the lives of disabled people in York.
The negative effects are not hypothetical, they are documented, they are happening just
as disabled people have warned the council time and time again. It has evidently been
ignored by the council, or else it should have been resolved. If the council claims that
they are listening to disabled people, | can only assume that, despite disabled peoples’
continued please and warnings, the council’s insistence of the ban and the recent castle
car park initiative is the council’s active hostility against disabled people. As a resident of
York | am incredibly disappointed by the city’s treatment of our disabled peers and the
actions of the council is shameful. This ban alone should call into question the validity of
the city’s “Human Rights City” label. | urge the council to REVERSE THE BAN! And
understand that this is a starting point in upholding fellow disabled residents’ rights!

We need access in vehicles for blue badge holders back again, please

Equality of opportunity is crucial for those with mobility problems to enjoy life to the full
V. important to have enabling practices!

Please reverse the ban on disabled people

There are many disabled people and those with Blue Badges should be able to reach the
city centre. Lots of cities have free shuttle buses and this is [also] really needed in York
for many people who can’t walk much but have no blue badge.

This action has closed my world down

Life is hard enough for the disabled and their carers. You have made it so much worse.

I am a 90 year old disabled lady. You have taken away my rights to be able to go into York
centre to meet with friends at various places including St Sampsons Church [Centre].
Growing old comes to all of us. We can’t stop it.



132

133

134
135

136
137

138

139

140
141
142

Page 33

| have lived in York 57 yrs and since the blue badge ban | have been unable to access York.
This is greatly distressing to me and | feel rejected and unwanted which adds to my
isolation.

My father lived in York for the whole of his life and walked and cycled everywhere until
his mid 90s. In the last few years of his life his remaining pleasure was to be driven into
the city and where he could manage a short walk. This link with his past added to his well-
being. To see this has been taken away from people who pay taxes to live in the city is
iniquitous

This decision has completely removed access to my own city. It is unjust in every sense.
My 26 year old daughter has been excluded from her own city centre since the
introduction of the ban. Having been limited in the first place to what was accessible to
her, she is now totally excluded because she is unable to walk from any of the car parks to
the shops. Her quality of life has been significantly affected.

My disabled husband can no longer visit the city he loves!!!

My mother is a blue badge holder who is over 100 and still able to walk and use shops
with support. | used to be able to take her by car, into Goodramgate and park outside or
near each shop she needs — Boyes, Savers, Peacocks (ladies clothes now closed — lost its
customers due to ban?) and Boots pharmacy. Now the covid emergency is over, it’s time
to re-enable parking access on Goodramgate and other places, e.g. Colliergate for
Barnitts, for blue badge holders.

(this all from one person) | am so saddened by the continuing effective ban of disabled
people into the city centre, and ashamed of being a York resident (and born here). My
mum died last month. She had MS for 40 years. Since the removal of parking and access
into the centre, she was no longer able to be taken into town by my father. | was no
longer able to take her to see a film at City Screen.

The small things in life that non-disabled people take as granted. Disabled people are
workers, consumers, visitors, residents and tourists.

But most of all they are human beings.

They have rights protected by the Equality Act 2010 and the city | am from has breached
these by making changes that have caused indirect discrimination. The Council (of which
| also used to have great sympathy for and work at) has unfortunately caused great
misery and suffering to disabled people and their families.

Access into our city really is that important to people.
Please, please reverse the changes.

Give disabled people the opportunity to live as others do. Please.

If you were disabled you would realise that we are all human beings, who have the right
to enter into our city.

Inhumane. Shocking

Isolation is a killer — please abolish this ban.

It is appalling that people with reduced mobility are prevented from participating in
York’s social and cultural life. Everyone is likely to be affected by reduced mobility at



143

144

145

146

147
148

149

150

151
152
153

154
155
156
157

158

159
160
161
162

Page 34

some point in their lives, and it should not be difficult to find solutions that allow people
in this situation to access the city centre. | urge the Council to do better.

A ‘solution’ to an issue that disproportionately disadvantages disabled people isn’t a
solution at all. Our lives matter just as much as yours

No other city has taken away the right of access to people to be able to enter parts of
their city freely and without prejudice — York as a city which claims to be for Human
Rights should read the charter they signed in 2017 and remember all people want to
enjoy this beautiful city and the facilities it has, not just those who have no restrictions to
their access.

The social model of disability emphasizes that people have impairments, but what
disables them are the barriers we place in the way of their inclusion. The Blue Badge ban
is a clear example of a failure to remove the barriers to disabled people’s inclusion in the
life of our city. It is shameful, divisive, and unacceptable from a self-declared “Human
Rights City”. How can our ambitions around tackling health inequalities & building a city
for all be taken seriously when council leaders took a decision like this despite being
begged not to? How can people believe it when we say we will shape the future of our
city around what matters to our residents if we ignore the voices we most need to hear?
Reverse the ban, show you understand it was wrong, before you are made to. It will be
too late if that day comes.

Please allow all people of York access to their city again. Disability should not be a barrier
to accessing the city centre.

Changes should not be at the expense of people with disabilities.

| feel that there is no rhyme or reason for this ban on blue badge holders. I've lost my
independence and my liberty. | want & need to get into town to spend money. No can
do. | strongly object to being told on how to live my life. Disabled peoples’ lives are hard
& difficult enough without this ban. It’s a disgrace.

The COYC issues Blue Badges which are impossible to use in the city where | pay rates.
Guess where my voice will go at the next local elections!

This is pure discrimination. | am doing this on my dad’s behalf as he has health related
issues. York needs to be community-driven, not profit-driven

We should make York an inclusive city for all!

Security should never mean exclusion.

This is blatant discrimination, if you wouldn’t allow Blue Badge holders to park at least
give them free public transport

Everyone deserves to be able to access and enjoy our beautiful city

Keith you are a bellend

Essential that full and proper provision is made!

Many blue badge holders are reduced to driving round looking for parking places which
are full then having to return home as they couldn’t find a space near enough for them to
access the city centre. This affects their quality of life and health. Please reconsider
Equal rights and independence for the disabled to park in York, like other welcoming
cities in the UK.

Disability rights = human rights

This would effectively make the city centre unreachable for most blue badge holders
Get rid of pavement tables and chairs

Get rid of pavement cafes



Page 35

163 Yes | think it's wrong. | work at St. Sampson’s for the over 60s and there is no longer
access for blue badge holders. This issue needs to be reversed as other cities have
overturned it

164 | volunteer at St. Sampson’s and it is sad to hear previous customers regret that they can
no longer access the centre

165 Obvious, init?

166 Selfish, thoughtless council. Shame on you

167 Disgusting to stop the disabled coming into the city centre

168 The changes to parking for the disabled has resulted in me no longer coming into York
unless it’s essential

169 The ban on Blue Badge parking has now reduced our visits to York by 98%!!

170 Discrimination — Council should be ashamed of themselves

171 As a Blue Badge user, | find it difficult to access services in York now. | am excluded from
socialising also

172  This is causing a lot of problems to my 92-year-old neighbor

173 No need to punish disabled people by restricting lives further

174 Disability discrimination!

175 |am a Blue Badge holder and find the parking options in York restrictive. Transfer to taxi
option is not practical — need a special car and assistance

176 You should be supporting the residents just as much as the tourists. York seems to be
becoming a money making exercise these days!

177 It’s discrimination

178 Hope you never get to be handicapped, life can be hard

179 It’s simple, reverse the ban!

180 This is utterly ridiculous and is a horrendous breach of the HRA and the Equality Act

181 Please consult York residents before you make such big decisions and NRM is another
example!

182 To be an inclusive/Human Rights City, York Council should include everyone and give
everyone the right to access the city centre, not exclude an entire community of people
who need to use their vehicles to access banks/shops/cafes etc. Life is hard enough for
them without this additional stress. It’s time to put this right!

183 Everyone should have the right to come into our city centre whenever they want. People
should not be prevented from coming into the city centre because they are disabled. Itis
the highest level of discrimination and quite frankly utterly disgraceful. What has
happened to York?

184 Think it’s appalling. Blue badge holders have just as much right to be there as everyone
else, why should their access be denied!!!

185 The ban will increase loneliness and isolation of people with mobility issues and further
decrease their opportunity to interact and access stimulation, culture/etc.

186 | am embarrassed about this ban and have had friends visit from abroad who were able to
travel internationally with their disability, only to receive a hostile welcome from the City
of York.

187 Please consider reversing the ban

188 | think this is disgraceful.

189 Now being disabled, | find it hard to get into the city centre & then walk from a car park,
when the only bank is in the city centre.



190
191
192

193
194

195
196

197

198
199

200
201
202
203
204
205

206

207
208
209

210

211
212

213

214
215

Page 36

Allow disabled parking as parking is hard at the best of times.

How can this happen. People need spaces

Disgraceful that the elderly and infirm cannot get into the city centre. These people
worked and paid taxes for many years.

The City of York’s treatment of disabled people is shameful and needs to be corrected.

| feel these people should be allowed to park in town and have the freedom of the City
like everyone else.

Keeping the ban is anti-historical!

| have friends who are disabled and really worry that they will not be able to enjoy York or
go shopping.

It’s not acceptable that you are excluding disabled residents and visitors from York city
centre.

Would of expected better from Lib Dems/Green Party!

Shame on you York council, people with disabilities have enough challenges to overcome
without being denied access into their own town centre! Honestly | was hopeful when a
joint Lib Dem/Green Council got voted in but see no improvements under your
leadership.

Please overturn the ban

Separation is isolating!

Justice. Equality. Inclusion

This is crazy. Huge adverse impact on people’s rights of access. Retrograde step.

Daft!!!

| find parking in York city centre very hard with my breathing and getting around. This
should be reversed.

Don’t target disabled people — why are you discriminating against the elderly? Itisa
disgrace. Shame on you!!

Blue Badge holders rely on freedom of access to the city and should not be restricted
Thank you for supporting this case.

| think York should allow blue badge holders in the city centre, as it would enable disabled
people to access the city, as it is more difficult to walk from a car park. By doing this you
will enable disabled people to have freedom of choice and enhance their mobility.

| am very angry about the current ban on Blue Badge holders....... It seems to me that this
is indicative of the move to prioritise commercial and tourist industry interests in York
over those of the residents. | have always supported tourism as a vital part of the city's
economy, but it strikes me that the main purpose of the city's economy should be to
provide for the city's residents, and that doesn't seem to be happening. | am an elderly
resident of York, | first came here nearly fifty years ago, and | am very saddened to see so
many residents being excluded from the heart of their city.

This car park is my lifeline to coming into York at all.

Please reverse the ban, to allow people with disabilities to have access to the city centre,
for important services, eg banks, opticians.

Not happy with current restrictions for blue badge holders wanting to access the city
centre. Need to reverse the ban!

| have an elderly father and this would affect him

This is discriminatory for people who have various disabilities. | thought York was a
friendly city.



216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223

224

225

226

227
228
229

230

231
232

233
234

235
236

237
238
239

240
241
242

Page 37

The ban is not good for disabled in these days of equality and diversity.

It’s unfair!

This is an embarrassment for the city!

How on earth was this ridiculous rule passed. Council is not listening to the residents.
How did this get passed??7??

My sister spends all her time doing this!

A discriminatory disgrace!!!

6 months ago | fell on the dreadful pavements and broke my hip. | have been unable to
get to York to the bank. I think the city council should spend more money on the
pavements.

For the people needing a blue badge, being able to park near to locality treasure troves
like the centre of our amazing city is a fabulous way of enriching their lives. Please don’t
continue to deprive them.

The lack of access amounts to disability discrimination with this council’s repeated failure
to make reasonable adjustments. Someone needs to go round York in a wheelchair and
see just how difficult it is for someone with mobility issues to navigate the city.

As | am disabled and cannot walk far, | have a walker | push. But to come into York for
entertainment or singing at St Sampsons Church [Centre] Fridays, | have to use Dial A Ride
to bring me in. £9.50 fare one way, otherwise it’s £14 each way ordinary taxi. The bus
stops in Acomb to York are too far away from where | live and walk to. If | use Fleetways
or York Cars they drop me at Pavement outside Marks and Spencers. Still a long walk to
St Sampsons and shops nearby. Hope this helps the cause.

Please support people who have no choice but wish to enjoy York and all it offers.

Can’t bring other people with mobility issues into town.

Without our car my husband is housebound. We are too far for him to walk to the
nearest bus stop and | do all the driving. As far as we are concerned this is discrimination
for people who are not able-bodied and old.

This is discrimination against disabled people. These people have enough problems to
cope with and being unable to park near the city centre may lead to them being
housebound.

My mum got a disabled badge. She needs it to get in York city centre.

| entirely agree that the City of York Council must reverse the ban on blue badge holders
in central York.

Please help everyone have a simpler life.

My husband enjoyed being in York many times due to parking in city. Although he is now
dead, | wish this for others.

We will be judged by how well we reach out to those most in need.

| object to pavement coffee culture, unless it is a pedestrian walkway with no cars. It not
only impacts wheelchair users and guide dogs but pushchairs and general public.

A disgraceful and possibly illegal act, with no consideration for older folk whatsoever.
Essential!!

| believe that the ban reversal will be beneficial to York City Council and to blue badge
holders who need to use the city centre for essential shopping.

This would make life easier for any amount of people.

Blue Badge holder. Yes please.

Discrimination against disability.



243

244
245
246
247

248
249

250

251

252

253
254

255

256

257
258

259

260

Page 38

This is shocking and should not be allowed. People with disabilities are being kept from
the city. This is disability discrimination.

Disability discrimination.

Disgraceful

This policy is discrimination!

Many blue badge holders are prevented from using such an essential service as their Bank
by this ban. Several banks and building societies are located within the boundary of the
banned area.

Disgusting policy

(all from one person) | recognise the need to address security issues in our city, but feel
that banning blue badge holders from the city is quite unacceptable. Banning any group
is a form of discrimination which should not be permitted.

All out citizens have a right to go about their lawful business, in their city. As a retired OT,
I’'m a strong advocate for people remaining as independent as possible. By stopping
disabled people from shopping, using the bank, attending appointments etc, the council is
preventing people from exercising their independence.

Other cities seem to be managing security concerns in a way which is not discriminatory.
Please lift this ban at once. It has no place in a free society!!

I’d also add that the environment of the city currently does little to support the ability of
disabled people —too many events attracting crowds of visitors, and too many pavement
cafes blocking easy transit!!

I’d also add that the environment of the city currently does little to support the ability of
disabled people —too many events attracting crowds of visitors, and too many pavement
cafes blocking easy transit!!”

The provision for disabled people in York is already massively lacking and a ban for blue
badge holders is a direct attack on disabled people. NO BAN!

I am in full agreement that steps need to be taken in this matter, having acted as a carer
for 2 family members and a close friend.

We should find a way to make York a more inclusive city.

Please reverse this. | care for a blue badge holder with Alzheimers and it’s impossible to
get her into the city centre. It’s against human rights.

Any councillor of York — are you disabled or does any of your family who may be disabled.
If you don’t know what it’s like to be disabled then you do not know what it’s like to
manage disability, living with it 24/7

Access to city centre for disabled people should be a priority.

We suffer enough. Please don’t make us suffer any more.

The ban on blue badge holders is an insult to older York residents who deserve better
treatment from Y.C.C as a Human Rights City.

Please reverse the ban to enable those with disabilities access to the city centre for vital
goods and services.

(all from one person) The banning of blue badge holders is discriminatory and will hit on
the most vulnerable people in our society. It was understandable that during the covid
restrictions that access for blue badge holders should be banned. Not that these
restrictions have been lifted there is no reason why this ban should remain in place.
Citing security measures is a poor excuse. Why not ban people with backpacks!



261

262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271

272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281

Page 39

Whilst the measures appear to have the full support of the business community, perhaps
this is because over the last few years the number of pavement cafes has increased.
Fossgate every other establishment appears to be a cafe.

The change in the type of establishment more towards hospitality has driven residents in
general away from shopping in the city centre and in particular blue badge holders. The
current ban also assumes that those with certain disabilities will be able to walk any
distance, this is not the case which is precisely the reason for the introduction of blue
badges in the first place.

(all from one person) Please make the city centre easily accessible to all disabled people.
So many (including blue badge holders) are unable to access the city centre from the
distances allowed at present. Our streets are very narrow and are often jammed with
tourists by 9.30 or 10am every day of the week. Pavement cafes also increase the
hazards for disabled people.

Whilst tourism is an important source of income for York, it is also now making it
impossible for small independent shops or the market to survive.

Most disabled people (especially physically disabled) cannot use the Park and Ride
services successfully for two reasons:

1. Most bus drivers do not offer help

2. The buses have a very small proportion of seats available.

York Council should be doing more for elderly and resident people and disabled people.
This affects a lot of people.

Please overturn this decision and improve accessibility.

This needs overturning.

They should be entitled — to make it easier to get about.

Do change your mind

It’s my partner who drives and needs this.

My husband is disabled so we want this ban to be lifted.

| am disabled. | need to park in the town centre. This ban needs to be lifted.
Please reverse this discriminatory policy that severely curtails the lives and human rights
of disabled people.

This is vital for disabled people to visit our town.

DON’T BAN THE BLUE BADGE!!

Surely disabled people have just as much right.

What a ridiculous decision. Reverse it.

Let them have access.

| definitely [dis]agree. My dad needs one.

Reverse the ban on blue badge holders.

Rubbish Council.

This is discrimination at its best. Try getting into shops etc in a wheelchair.
Should bring it back.




282

283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

Page 40

Disabled people need to live too. It is unfair and an invasion of their human rights.
Please reverse the ban.

Bring back D.P.A.G.

Just make it easier. Don’t make the situation more difficult with the stress!

Keep open to blue badge holders.

Please help blue badge owners to access York.

It is inconvenient.

Disabled access needed URGENTLY.

Out of order. Not good.

This decision was not thought out in respect of the needs of disabled people.

Disabled need to park if they can’t walk.

Should not be banned.

Yes, please remove the barrier.

It is essential for disabled parking to be allowed in the city centre to give them access to
the centre.

| am able bodied now but who knows what the future holds this is my city and | want to
be able to access it with both my able bodied and disabled friends and family.

I’'m writing to express my support to a reverse the ban on blue badge holders from
parking in the city of York as they previously were able to. This ban is discriminatory and
impacts the lives of those who are unable to get into the city centre because of their
disability to support the local economy and enjoy what the city centre has to offer them,
be that retail, eating out or attending choir rehearsals which are held in the city.

My parents have been York residents since the 1950’s and have been directly affected by
this ban and, as elderly residents of York, it has hugely impacted their wellbeing and
social opportunities. | was born and raised in York and | return frequently to support my
parents. My sister and | both find it stressful and inconvenient when we want to bring
them into the city centre as we have to drop them off as close to where we need to be in
the centre and leave them alone whilst we go and park elsewhere.

| am a manual wheelchair user who moved to County Durham three years ago. The ban
means that York, which | expected to be an excellent shopping and socialising choice, is
not possible for me.

To ban disabled people from our town centre is an absolute disgrace shame on you York
Council you think more of the tourists than your own citizens.

We feel that City of York council cannot hide behind dubious claims about terrorist
prevention methods in order to justify this. They have also clearly failed to provide the
shuttle bus service that was mentioned numerous times in the infamous meeting a few
months ago. Surely that should be a simple and quick thing to arrange?!

| have not been into town since the parking changed for Blue Badge holders as it has
become too inconvenient and would be detrimental to my health with having further to
go to access services in the town centre. Pleasure outings such as to the cinema or for
meals out have ceased and | have sought alternative out of town locations for things like
the opticians. Shopping | would have done with a quick visit to town is being replaced
with online purchases. These examples, combined with many others in a similar situation,
must be harming the economy of the city.



302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310
311

312

313

Page 41

The ban will keep disabled people from entering the City. Would you (the council) act
differently if you had a mobility issue. Disabled parking in the car parks you suggest are
too far out of the City, please use some common sense for once.

The ban is ridiculous and | find it discriminating against people with disabilities. Do these
people actually know or even understand what it is like to be unable to walk just a few
yards?

My Dad was a blue badge holder and very much enjoyed being able to get into York every
week to meet up with friends for coffee. He would have been very upset to know that
the City now no longer welcome disabled visitors.

| am a disabled person who relies on a mobility scooter to get around. York has long been
a favourite place to visit, either for day trips or longer visits, but with the changes to Blue
Badge parking arrangements it is no longer accessible to me. There is simply no point in
trying to visit when people like me are being made to feel so unwelcome. The worry of
finding somewhere to park ruins a visit and unless you reverse the ban | can’t imagine us
coming back.

Please reverse the ban on disabled parking in York city centre. This ban affects May
people including businesses where disabled people shop. It is inhumane & cruel to keep
this situation

We are moving to Doncaster shortly and one of the things we were looking forward to
was visiting York. As a blue badge holder and someone whose mobility is becoming
increasingly impaired, not being able to park in the centre and having to walk longer
distances on crutches, this ban will inevitably mean we are less likely to visit.

| am the main carer for my 92 year old father, twice per year he likes to go to his bank and
get it updated, his bank is, was the Yorkshire Bank on Coney Street, we usually went there
for 09:30 for when the bank opened and only stayed there 5 -10 minutes tops, now | can’t
take him and he has lost his independence and feels very undervalued as a citizen of York.
Please can you reconsider your decision.

| am horrified to hear that the Council is planning to ban Blue Badge holders from the city
centre. My late partner had the benefit of one when he was very ill. It made all the
difference to the quality of his life that he was able to visit the city centre as it gave him a
modicum of independence and a normal life. We went into town every afternoon. He was
very limited in what he could do but he enjoyed going out for a cup of tea and feeling part
of things. Otherwise he would have been stuck at home all the time. If this appalling plan
is approved by the Council, at the next election | will vote for whatever Party proposes
overturning it.

An absolute disgrace that this has been put in place!

| wish to join the protest at the high-handed actions of City of York council in banning
blue badge holders from the streets of the city.

Please have a heart for those people unable to get to the shops without being able to
park. | used to take my mother in and park outside Brown's department store, where she
could buy most things she needed plus she could get to Hotters shoe shop with her
walking aid. Now she would be unable to do that. | know how much she enjoyed being
able to choose and do things for herself. To take away people's independence is
heartless.

| often visited York before Covid, especially with family and friends. But without the
accessibility of a close blue badge parking | will not be able to visit in the future. This is a
shame as it’s one of my favourite cities, and | come for music as well as



314

315

316

317

318

319

320

321

Page 42

shopping/sightseeing/food. You really have not thought about the rights of those with
mobility issues. We don’t all have access or the need for a wheelchair/mobility scooter -
and | liked to visit occasionally on my own too, but this is now completely impossible.
Please reverse the ban.

| frequently took my 93 year old mother into town to visit the cafes and shops. She can
only mobilise very short distances with a wheeled walker. We have had to resort to very
occasional trips in the wheelchair when my husband is available to accompany us to lift
the wheelchair in and out of the car. You seem to have no thought or consideration for
people such as my Mum who would like to be able to get out of the car and walk a few
paces to a cafe etc let alone the wheelchair users. Please reverse the ban.

I'm a Blue Badge holder who can't walk far and used to thoroughly enjoy visiting the city
centre, fairs etc. but was incredulous when the Council decided to discriminate against
me and people like me by preventing access. | haven't been into the City since. It's an
appalling and shortsighted action against disabled people

I am blind and moving around is very difficult and stressful without more barriers relating
to blue badge parking.

Please think again. You’re here to look after every one not just the few. We have a say at
the ballot box remember!

As a disabled person | no longer feel welcome in town, or in the York community. | rarely
get into town these days because of access limitations. | can’t bring my kids into the city
centre for activities as my son and | are both disabled and he can’t manage buses. | miss
feeling like | belong and am welcome here.

| am deeply dismayed at how York Council is so clearly and openly discriminating against
people with disability, effectively banning them from the city centre and other areas with
no regard to disability legislation and without the slightest show of humanity in your
approach. It’s a disgrace for this city.

| tried to have input during the consultation but felt from the start that the decisions
were already made it was in fact a fait a complis and | was being “used” so that boxes
were ticked and the consultants had consulted people with disabilities. The situation is
getting worse with the street cafes using the footpaths and the designated parking bays
being too far away from the city for people with limited mobility what ever causes this in
their situations.

(all from one person) By preventing blue badge holders from accessing the city centre,
they are missing out on services and opportunities, for example the opportunity to work
in the city centre or even to enjoy leisure time. The ban will very likely contribute to
stripping disabled people of independence and social connections, impacting on mental
health. The council claims the ban will protect against terrorism, but Liverpool did not
take any such action following the terrorist attack there in November 2021, the event
which | believe this ban is in response to.

The council is now proposing to close the car park next to Clifford's tower, which has 31
Blue Badge spaces, forcing Blue Badge holders to use St George's Field Car Park, which
only has 4 Blue Badge spaces and is prohibitively far for some, making accessing the city
centre exhausting, stressful, and dangerous, especially as much of the city's paving means
it is already hard to navigate with disabilities. The council seems to be favouring tourist
influx over the quality of life of York's permanent disabled residents.’



322

323

324

325

326
327

328
329
330
331

332

333
334

335

336

337

338

339
340

341

342
343

344

Page 43

Access to York city centre is very poor and requires careful planning! What needs to
happen is a coordinated approach to encourage a more diverse populous into this human
rights city.

York is becoming a national embarrassment. Clearly disabled people aren’t welcome.
This is not the 19t century when people were hidden away.

It’s a disgrace that blue badge holders can’t enter York’s city centre since Nov 2021.This
ban needs to be reversed immediately. It’s discriminatory and breaches human rights.
Other cities have found ways to keep people safe why not York?

Your current policies have stopped me getting into town, even in my wheelchair, as | can’t
park close enough to my desired destinations to get to them, and | can’t get passed a lot
of obstructions (pavement cafes, etc). Please, please reassess & overturn your current
policies as a matter of urgency as they are thoroughly discriminatory and completely
neglect the human rights of disabled residents like me.

Please don't exclude disabled people!

This is really something that needs addressing as a matter of urgency as there a people
out there with genuine need to be able to access places that those without health
problems access as a matter of routine.

Do IT Do IT Now Please

This is completely unacceptable a major step backwards.

SORT YOURSELF OUT, KEITH !!!

Please change this as disabled people need to be able to get to town and public transport
just isn’t enough!

I’'ve been a York citizen for 25 years and frankly, this disgusting behaviour makes me
ashamed to be. Sort it out.

| can’t access York anymore!

The pavements are difficult without all the tables and chairs. Residents should take
priority over tourists.

Please stop making it impossible for residents and visitors to shop & visit THEIR city. Not
everyone is fit enough to to ride a bicycles. Other historic cities manage to do this without
banning blue badges.

It’s a shame you don’t look after your own residents.

This is discrimination of disabled and older people of York. Most of them have lived,
worked and shopped in York all their lives and are now not allowed in the city!

| believe all should have access to part of the city. Visitors should bear able to experience
all of the city and even more residents should have access to their own town centre.

It’s discrimination and unfair. Disabled people have their own rights.

York is already an old city where there are restrictions on some building on how
accessible they can be. We get this. But the parking is a whole other issue - there are
other ways to keep our beautiful city safe without making it inaccessible to people who
live here! This can be an amazing place to live for EVERYONE.

This move is a disgrace! Tarnishes this city’s reputation and breaks the 2010 Equality Act
due to the false pretext of it being an anti-terrorism measure.

You should be ashamed and | hope you are.

Shocking lack of disability access. My grandad and uncle cannot come and visit me in
town.

Having had a disabled husband | know how restricting and frustrating it is to banned fro
the city we financially support.



345
346
347

348

349

350

351
352
353

354

355

356

357

358

359

360

361
362
363
364
365

366

367
368

Page 44

It’s an absolute disgrace that disabled people are treated in this way.

| feel York is all about tourists now. As a blue badge holder. | find it disgusting.

One of our children is a blue badge holder due to Duchene Muscular dystrophy - a muscle
wasting, life limiting condition. We are fortunate to be staying very close to York for a
holiday but having to pay for taxis to get as close to the city as we can because of our
son’s difficulties with walking long distances.

Goodramgate should be open to disabled people earlier.

Living where | do with a very limited bus service and severe walking problems this
decision has spoilt the few times | tried to get to the theatre or city screen or to goto a
special shop.

A 7pm curfew is heartless and Castlegate impossible unless you come very early. Please
reconsider.

| can’t even drive a car, but | agree with this ban being removed.

Now | struggle to enjoy my home city.

As a disabled person it’s difficult to get into the city centre which means | am isolated
from being able to go to the city centre. Please reconsider the decision so me and others
can access and park in the city centre.

Seems like a way to make York less inclusive.

| find it strange that in a time of such inclusivity, City of York Council should make life so
much harder for a group of people who already have additional needs.

This definitely needs over-turning. What a disgrace to stop blue badge holders going into
York - this is blatant disability discrimination.

Please reverse this ban now.

The ban on blue badge holders in York city centre could be seen at its best as thoughtless
and inconsiderate and at its worst as spiteful and vindictive. The council seems to be
saying please come and visit York... but not if you are disabled.

Please come and visit our many welcoming pubs, cafes and restaurants... but not if you
are disabled.

Please come amend spend in our wonderful shops and keep the city centre alive... but not
if you are disabled. | not that delivery vans, post office vans and other business related
vehicles have permission to drive in the city centre so why not blue badge holders?
Surely this small number of people can be accommodated by a council that wishes to
promote York as a welcoming city and show that all people matter to York, and that all
are welcome.

Reverse the ban please.

Parking generally needs a major rethink.

A very unfair policy but the whole parking situation needs to be carefully considered.

It’s an absolute disgrace that disabled people are treated this way.

This is discrimination of disabled and older people of York. Most of them have lived
worked and shopped in York all their lives and are now not allowed in the city.

| have worked with disabled people and have disabled friends. | know first hand how hard
it is to get around for the person and the carer. Accessibility in York is bad enough as it is
without the council making it worse. | think it’s a disgrace and discriminates against
disabled people. | am sure solutions could be found.

They should have the right to park in town again.

Blue badge holders struggle and need help. Anything to help the elderly community.



369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382
383

Page 45

It's shameful that York is so unfriendly for disabled. The council should be working to
change that image, not make the situation worse.

| am disabled and have a blue badge. | have great difficulty walking and have to plane my
route when in town. For instance if | am going to Coney Street /Ousegate /Coppergate |
park near the Castle Museum then when | want to go
Goodramgate/Colliergate/Petergate/Stonegate | move the car to Aldwark area If | use
my mobility scooter | have problems with pavements as cafes have been allowed to over
spill onto the pavement and | can’t get off the pavement as there are no drop kerbs for
instance in Castlegate. | have written to the council about this and they have said they are
looking into these areas. That was last July and still nothing been done. It’s easier for me
to go to out of town shopping like Vangarde/ designer centre but | need to go to coney
street/market street for my bank and building society.

| urge the Lib Dem-Green Council administration to reverse the ban on blue badge
holders entering the city centre. Other cities have addressed security concerns without
excluding disabled people and York should do the same. As a Human Rights City, York
should not be acting in this way.

| am a resident, and disabled. | really feel that this rule should be re considered as soon as
possible. It would make a massive difference

| am a blue badge holder and it has very much limited my visit to city centre even with
other places to park the side streets were very much needed hopefully they can be
reinstated in future.

| have not been in York centre since first lock down.. | now find shopping on line is better..
| miss being able to sit in a cafe and enjoy a tea or coffee. Resident. (Postcode not
supplied)

I’'m 50, disabled & have lived in York most of my life. Now that my health has declined |
feel it’s cruel to penalise disabled ppl, by removing their right to park within York, just
because we have a disability that prevents us from walking far.

It’s ruining this amazing city. Let’s change it for the better & make it accessible for all who
wish to shop & take in the wonderful sights of York without having to drive miles out of
York. Resident. (Postcode not supplied)

Resident of York for 63 years. We think the parking ban is a disgrace & unfortunately are
nearing age & health where it will affect us too. This council simply does not care for its
residents disabled and able bodied!!

I'm a 57 year old severely disabled York resident and find this parking ban has, indeed,
impacted on my visiting the City Centre. | will be very interested t to learn how the
Council responds.

My wife has a blue badge - we bank with Lloyds branch in Acomb which has closed and
transferred us to the city centre which we cannot access. To add insult to injury the badge
is now due for renewal at a cost of £10.

Being Disabled can cause restrictions in our Body and Mind. So being restricted by the
Council who run our city is so wrong. You can become Disabled by Iliness or Accident. But
dictating against us is Wrong.

Discrimination of the worst kind against someone who was born and raised in the city 73
years ago.

Disabled people are made to feel very unwelcome in York and like second class citizens.
How dare you discriminate against disabled people! This goes completely counter to
equality, diversity and inclusion! | thought Lib Dems and Greens would be inclusive.



384

385

386
387
388
389
390
391
392

393

394

395

396

397
398
399

400

401

402

403
404

405
406
407
408

Page 46

| think of York as a welcoming and inclusive city, | am so sad and shocked that our Council
should behave in this way and exclude a valued part of our community.

In an age when we are working towards complete equality, diversity and inclusion, it is
paramount that York — the city of Sanctuary — demonstrates its commitment to including
disabled people.

Let my granddaughter back into her city!

Discrimination!!

Please change the rules!

Disgusting, shameful and discriminative.

| have friends that would greatly benefit from reverse the ban.

York city centre should be a place for everyone to enjoy.

The ban has had a really bad effect on disabled people. Its limiting their freedom. |
thought there was an Equality Act that makes it illegal to discriminate — not provide
opportunities — the ban breaches this now.

Think about your own residents! Not Tourists and money!

| have family members with disabilities which means this ban has a huge negative effect
on their lifestyle.

My disabled daughter and her blue badge who | have to drive is restricted in her daily life
and activities by this ban.

The Blue Badge ban is ableist. Why not work with advocacy groups as Bath Council did, to
balance counter-terrorist measures with disabled people’s rights to a full life?

This ban is unacceptably discriminatory and must be reversed.

It’s against disability human rights to deny access to public spaces.

It feels like I’'m being discriminated against for being a wheelchair user. Let me access my
city!

(all from one person) “What else can you take away from disabled people especially disabled
children! | had a phone call from CYC last week permanently terminating the transport my
disabled 12 year old son receives to take him to his respite - he is a full time, personal assisted
wheelchair user. Are you saying, because he is disabled, he doesn’t have a right to be in the city
centre like everyone else? That is ridiculous and you should be very embarrassed and ashamed.

| work very hard to ensure my disabled son is included in every aspect of everyday life - |
recommend you do the same and give disabled people a break they don’t need this when life is
already tough enough! | live in hope of change!”

As a person that has mobility issues, it is a nightmare to get into the city and the cost of parking is
absurd

As an elderly disabled person, | depend on friends & taxis to travel — cannot use walker safely to
need to be taken to outside destination. This restriction on disabled badges is simply
discrimination!

Stop discriminating against disabled people! Do more for your constituency! Be kind!

| don’t fully understand why York prioritises able-bodied people (scooters etc_. Disgusted. Also
need more support for elderly/younger people who are not blue badge holders but need cheaper
parking, later buses. | go to Malton & Thirsk rather than York. As easier..... this is tragic.

My daughter would love to visit York again but is now a blue badge holder and needs an escort.
This is a short sighted and discriminatory decision by the Council

Do not discriminate and reverse the ban

Please reverse the ban as we and other businesses need the trade in York city centre and
it makes it harder to get about to shop!



409

410

411
412

413

414

415

416

417
418
419

420

421

422
423

424
425
426
427

428
429

430

431

432

Page 47

York is for all residents and tourists and disabled people have as much right to these
facilities as any able-bodied person.

Why make life hard for those who are finding it hard enough to get around, never mind
more added restrictions. Shops also need every customer they can get —it’s hard times.
Lost a lot of regular customers due to the ban — definitely needs to be reversed!

It has affected business in the city centre. We have missed all the blue badges, they spent
money in the city and now this has gone. The shop will go too!

This is stopping customers shopping in the city centre.

My friend is a wheelchair user, she can no longer come into town and shop. This is
discrimination against disabled people and especially one who has been a resident for a
lot of years.

Discrimination at its finest!!! Disgraceful!!

Disgraceful. | have a mum and a sister that have blue badges and we need to get into the
city. Life is hard enough. Do something about it!

Make sense!

How dare you!

| didn’t even know this was a thing. | guess we are all flat-out stupid at some point. Bad
move, don’t do it.

Blue badge holders should be able to access shops close to them rather than (streets)
being completely pedestrianised.

Our customers need to be able to park closer to the branch for us to be able to help them
with their finances!

We need to allow people to have the ability to come to the Branch.

Disability is a protected characteristic, we must ensure their rights and needs are
protected!

Come on York City sort it out, human rights for everybody.

My brother has a blue badge. This isn’t fair. It’s discrimination.

Please lift the ban. Disabled rights please.

It should be a basic right for disabled people to be able to access the city of York —why is
this an issue!!

Having issues with mobility shouldn’t make it harder still to access the city’s facilities.
Since the ban we have lost some of our older clients who cannot manage to get into York
City Centre so lost sales! This also affects me personally as my mum is in a wheelchair
and a Blue Badge holder with breathing difficulties. With her medication she cannot
leave the house before 10.20am until it takes effect and since the ban we have been
going to Barclays Bank in Haxby which is now closing and she has NO access to Barclays
York City Centre!! (city centre dress shop manager)

Policies that allow Blue Badge holders to access the same amenities as other individuals
has to be a positive step for York. | am sure it will also benefit independent stores in the
area. (city centre lingerie business owner)

Closing the roads won’t stop people driving, it simply makes places less accessible and
adds to the problem of traffic (having to go round places like The Groves of city centre) so
adding to pollution. This access is needed to include disabled people who cannot access
our city centre!

My brother, a lifelong York resident is no longer able to visit his own city centre due to
this ban.



433
434
435
436
437
438

439
440

441
442
443
444
445
446
447

448
449
450

451
452
453
454

455
456

457
458
459
460
461

462
463

464

Page 48

This ban is unacceptable.

Disabled people are not something to be ignored.

It’s totally unacceptable to create further barriers for people with disabilities.

Everyone should have access to the city centre.

It’s sad that holders of blue badges are treated like this.

| believe it’s vitally important for disabled people to have equal access to the town centre
as non-disabled people.

A discriminatory Council.

My brother, a lifelong resident, is no longer able to visit his own city centre due to this
ban

All citizens need to be considered, some much more than others.

Disgrace!!

Absolutely crackpot idea!!

This ban is unacceptable. It treats a human right as something to be ignored

Banning blue badge holders is giving way to terrorists.

The YCC needs to think carefully about the needs of disabled people in York

This is restricting life for people whose everyday life is already filled with challenges able-
bodied people do not give a second thought.

This is a disgrace

Shocking treatment of disabled people

I’d like the Council to consider whether they would still consider this decision fair if they
themselves or their families were disabled and were denied access to the city centre and
its facilities

Needs more parking in city centre. Car park charges are so expensive for residents
More fairness for disabled people

This is an act of discrimination against disabled people — visitors and residents

This ban is a complete disgrace. Reverse the decision, effective immediately. Look after
your citizens

This is unfair

Banning blue badge holders from entering the city centre is a clear breach of the Equality
Act 2010. When disabled people cannot enter the city centre they are excluded from
accessing a whole host of services and facilities that should be available to all. This is
obviously discriminatory and the current policy needs to be changed immediately

The ban is a disgusting violation of basic human rights

York needs to give every person the equal opportunity to use and enjoy our city

Typical York!

It is disgusting behaviour of York Council

Councillors should visit Stratford-on-Avon and see for themselves disabled parking
provision right in the centre

This is disgraceful!

It is a disgrace and an affront to basic human rights. No other city has implemented
security in such a draconian way that it breaches all semblance of equality and penalises
the most vulnerable in our society.

| work with people who have learning difficulties and | know how distressed they are
about this.



465

466

467

468
469

470

471
472
473
474

475

476

477
478

479
480

481
482
483
484

485
486
487
488

489
490
491

Page 49

It is totally wrong that people live in a city and cannot go into town, particularly as when
they moved or were born here they could —and that the council has now chosen to
exclude them. There are other ways to make the city secure. This is total discrimination.
| think that in this day and age YCC would be more inclusive and not discriminatory to
people with disability. Is this even legal to exclude people with disability from shopping
and enjoying their lives to the full?

| am a carer for a person in a wheelchair and find it very difficult to visit the city centre.
This is very discriminating of YCC

This is terrible. Please listen to disabled people in York.

| don’t think you should stop blue badge holders in the middle of town because Brunswick
people need to park where we are close to things

It is a shame that the York Council are not thinking about all its residents and visitors!
Excluding people with disabilities is outrageous!!

We need some car park[ing]

Surely to make life easier for everyone, regardless of disability, is good for everybody

As an ‘older resident’ | dread getting older and being unable to enter my city

Please reverse all the crazy policies relating to disabled people — the parking issue is a
nonsense

We have a granddaughter who has cerebral palsy, 8 years old, so do we assume that she
would be expected to be pushed into York and not allowed to enter the city by car? Such
a perverse state of affairs!

Footpaths is blocked by café tables/chairs/signs forces us to walk on the roads — we
cannot hear cyclists etc coming up fast behind us, especially speedy ‘Deliveroos’ & @Just
Eat’ cyclists riding all over the footpaths too. A cyclist knocked me down and broke my
bones.

Ridiculous! Uncaring! Bizarre! It could be you!

Have a disabled sister and mother and will struggle to find places near to the centre for
them

Unable to visit town centre due to no streets to park

My daughter is terminally ill and it is difficult to get disabled parking in a place where she
can go to popular shops in the centre

This must be reversed. Disabled people should be given rights!

It seems discriminatory to banish disabled people

Unacceptable to increase barriers to those with blue badges

Disgusting to ban blue badge holders in the first place. The people that made this
decision are obviously not disabled themselves. Selfish

It is very important for disabled badge holders to have access to our city centre

This is completely wrong in every regard

Everyone deserves access

This seems discriminatory to me. Why would you want to deny disabled people access to
the city?

This ban is discriminatory and disappointing

As a granddaughter of a disabled grandfather, | feel passionately about reversing the ban.
Permanently barring Blue Badge holders in the city reduces accessibility for vulnerable
groups and encourages discriminatory practices. To avoid this, it is essential to reverse
the ban and promote human rights.



492

493

494

495
496

497

498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505

506
507
508
509
510
511
512

513

514

515

Page 50

| am a university student. My father has recently become disabled due to a workplace
accident which will soon require him to undergo amputation. York has come to be my
second home which | love to show off to my family and friends when they visit me. My
home town is in Kent which means travelling to visit me is a significant task for a disabled
person on its own. It is therefore heartbreaking for me to hear that exclusion will greatly
hinder and restrict my ability to show my father this beautiful and historic city that | have
come to call home. So much of the culture that made me fall in love with York is found in
the city centre which will soon become inaccessible for him. This | wholeheartedly
support the reversal of this ban. Covid has already prevented me from sharing this city
with my family. Thus after shielding for so long in the hopes that one day they could
properly visit, this ban effectively ends the ability for me to share the wonders of the city
centre with my family.

| vote Green because of your commitment to making the world a better place for future
generations. This should include people with disabilities!

| am currently a manager for a care company within York and have witnessed first hand
the difficulty my clients are having with the restrictions in place. Many are choosing to
not even go into town as it just causes upset and frustration. The city should be open to
everyone, not a select few.

As a Human Rights City, York should not be acting this way.

How are disabled people to access the services and facilities that you take for granted —
banks, GPs etc

Having resigned from the Lib Dems last year in protest of the blue badge ban, | continue
to be furious that compromise wasn’t reached. It is not too late to do the right thing!!
You smell like mouldy sausages

You are all useless blood sucking parasites

| have been unable to bring my sister, 83, into the fun of the town as she cannot walk far
Surely these people have enough problems

From a disabled woman

From a disabled lad

Why is city of York council acting like this?

| feel this is discrimination against the disabled. My friend, a blue badge holder, can no
longer access her bank!

York is meant to be a welcoming and humane city — please reverse this ban

Reverse this —it’s obviously wrong!

Please reverse the ban —to be an accessible city

It’s time this was sorted out!

Reverse the ban!

Why would you think this [reversing the ban] is a bad idea?

| feel that the strict security operation is well over the top for York. Far too “politically
correct”

Making it impossible for blue badge holders to access their city is NOT what we want to
see!

We need to use walkers so going round York is difficult as we have to go on the road or
up and down the pavements

We have to use walkers so café tables and chairs mean we have to go up and down
pavements or on the road



516

517

518

519
520
521

522

523

524

525

526
527

528

529

530

531

532

533
534
535

536

537

538

Page 51

In addition you need to end the obstruction of pavements. Patently this is incompatible
in the CYC equalities obligations

Removing blue badges limits individuals with additional mobility requirements from being
able to access the city centre. York is a gorgeous place that should be easily accessible to
everyone regardless of ability/disability. This is ableist and, quite frankly, embarrassing
People need to be able to have easy access to the city and bringing their car in makes life
better for them

We should be helping disabled people not hindering them

Most unfair on local disabled people. Don’t put tourists before Yorkies!

The council provides facilities for tourists. How about disabled people. It’s time someone
reassessed this

The blue badge should not have been taken from the disabled in the first place. It was a
disgrace. ‘Bring it Back’. Too many cafes and pubs, stag dos and hen dos. Families avoid
York.

We are looking at yet another bossy/misinformed method of keeping the elderly and/or
lame people off the streets. This shocking ‘order’ should be dustbinned - immediately
Allowing people to enjoy a good quality of life is important. Excluding the disabled
community from accessing vital services such as high street banks and specialist
healthcare shops is not what | would describe as a human rights city. York needs to
reverse the ban to provide equal and dignified access to the city for all

Discrimination under the guise of ‘safety issues’ and ‘climate concern’ neither protects
nor serves the community or the environment.

This ban is unacceptable. Disabled people are not something to be ignored.

In the name of security — a ‘perceived’ risk — disabled people, including people with
emotional disabilities ‘actually’ become isolated in their own homes.

It’s sad that holders of blue badges are treated like this. Also, | have 2 brothers with blue
badges, and they agree. | do not support banning blue badge vehicles.

| am a support worker regularly needing to assist service users for shopping /
appointments/ social engagements in York Centre. This is increasingly difficult. Reversing
the ban would assist transportation.

As a support worker this situation is proving very very difficult for me to pick up and drop
off the clients, | support either wheelchair users or those with sight loss.

Seems like York does not welcome blue badge holders.

Because of the ban, as a wheelchair user, | am struggling to push my chair because of
poor street pavements. Being visually impaired | have fallen out of my chair not been
able to see obstacles.

This is indirect discrimination against disabled people

This is against the Equality Act 2010

Café culture is discriminatory, a hazard to everyone, intrusive, taking over the place as
though you have a right to, and stops disabled people having access to what they have a
right to.

A ridiculous discriminatory behaviour for the sake of tables — usually empty — blocking
pavement and access. It is a wonder any resident, able-bodied or needing mobility
support, ever goes in York city centre. A bloody joke

Excluding blue badge holders from York city centre is wrong. York is a Human Rights City?
| don’t think so!

York is for everyone



539

540

541

542

543

544

545
546

547

Page 52

A city that excludes disabled people can never be a home —rather, it is an inaccessible
monument to ableism

This is crucial to the well-being and independence of many from out city and for visitors.
Those who are differently-abled must be given equal access and equal rights to all
citizens. This is, indeed, an equality and human rights issue

Because of this ban, | am now reliant on a wheelchair to cover long distances to access
places in the city centre. Also because | am blind | require the services of someone to
push me.

| am over 60 years old and | volunteer to take a blind person with severe mobility issues
into town twice a week. Without these trips he would be confined to his house. Since
these restrictive measures were introduced, he has been forced to buy a wheelchair in
order to get to these places. Please reverse this ban.

I am a 30 year old with a chronic lung condition and | am very limited in the distance
which | can walk. My quality of life is severely reduced by the lack of access to York city
centre, caused by these draconian measures

It is essential that blue badge holders should have access to York city centre at all times.
Delivery drivers and taxis have not been banned so why should blue badge holders be
discriminated against

Elections are coming!

Not allowing disabled people into York town centre discriminates against our disabilities
and human rights. | am unable to use public transport. | have special needs and can
become anxious while out, so need to be able to access the car easily

It's abhorrent to see York Council treating disabled people like second class citizens. York is poorer
for it. Reverse the Ban



Page 53

(ii) Additional Comments From Visitors

N o o b WN

O o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

18
19
20

21

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

32
33
34

35

As a retired police officer | find the discrimination against blue badge holders disgusting
Lack of parking limits my parents getting out & about. Disgusting

Disabled people need accessibility!

Stopping friends living a full life!! BAD

Reverse the ban now!!

Lack of parking will stop me visiting York

Ability to get out and about and maintain independence — reduce community needs
impact

This ban must be reversed. Access for all!

Please open York to all

Disgusting

People who are disabled need these as much as those who aren’t disabled

| feel very strongly about this

People need this!

| visit York on a daily basis and would be a lot easier for my mobility scooter due to terrain
Need equity of access for everyone please

See sense, please. It is difficult enough being disabled without lack of access to shops and
sites

This ban is pure discrimination; it hurts disabled people across our city and country.
Reverse the ban!

Disabled people are people!

Commercial is not more important than civil liberties

Seems an odd move to me — why this change. Isn’t it discriminatory? Not acceptable.
Thank you

As someone nearing disabled status, to hear that this could restrict my experience and
already excludes disabled. | am just gutted and saddened

It is necessary for some people to be able to park in the centre

Vital for access to essential amenities for ALL

This is poor!! Everyone is equal

| don’t give a s***

Disabled rights are human rights

Don’t discriminate!

Very important for wheelchair users to be close to shops, banks etc

Please reinstate disabled parking for me

Reverse the ban, please!

Reverse the ban! You don’t realise the stress you are causing to those who NEED all the
blue badge spaces. Don’t take away the rights to be part of a community

We have a right to quality of life.

Disabled people need to have quality of life. Make their lives easier not more difficult.
This is an injustice to disabled people under false pretences of ‘safety’ and ‘terrorism’ —
REVERSE THE BAN!

| am a regular visitor to York and have a blue badge. | need to be able to park in the city
centre so please reverse the ban.



36
37
38

39
40
41
42
43
44

45

46
47
48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
57

58

59

Page 54

It's wrong to close the car park. It will affect me as | am over 75.

This is devastating for anyone using a wheelchair. Don’t do it.

We love to come to York but my husband is disabled and you are making it more difficult
for disabled people. Please think again.

Please do not close.

Please be fair — disabled need full access!

Stupid decision to close the car park

As a blue badge holder, facilities like this are the only way society includes us.

If this closes will no longer visit York.

We come to York weekly and are a badge holder — to park nearer (problems walking)
would be an advantage

Where are my human rights? | can’t travel or walk too far. Do | starve and stop spending
money

Awful!!

Ridiculous!

My daughter, who is a wheelchair user and who grew up in York and loves to visit now
feels excluded and finds it difficult to come home.

While | appreciate you are trying to protect the public — you are also excluding part of the
community which is most unfair

The ban on Blue Badge parking in the city centre means that we as a family do not feel
welcome. York was one of our favourite places to visit, to spend money, and to enjoy.
Unless this ban is reversed we will be taking our money elsewhere

This ban is highly discriminatory and unnecessary. York city centre is a beautiful place to
visit and relies heavily on tourists to support local business. To deny access across the day
to both residents and visitors who need blue badge access is a very poor reflection on the
city and its council.

As a regular visitor to York and admirer of your beautiful city, | want to keep access open
to everyone, including those with a disability and who need a Blue Badge to enable them
to have closer access to city centres. By keeping your ban you are effectively telling a
whole community that you don’t want them there. This is a huge step backwards not only
in inclusion and diversity, but in human rights. Please reverse the ban!

Human rights? — but only if you are able-bodied.... Shame on you lib Dem-Greens.

We were planning to visit York in the week commencing 5 September, as tourists, whilst
on holiday in North Yorkshire.

| have a Blue Badge. | also have ME, so I'll only be going if all the conditions allow that
day. But | wish to register my disgust at this policy, which needs to be reversed and is
now making us think twice and is deterring us from coming to the city.

Please send a postcard on my behalf to let York council know this is unacceptable.
Powerchair-user, teacher of Social Model to UG & PG architects, surveyors & QS - York
will go front & centre in my lectures this year as an example of wilfully stupid Ableist
policy, unless they back down.

To York Council, how dare you treat our blue badge holders with such disrespect? Not
only are you ostracising people who are already struggling to travel into this beautiful city
of York, as residents and visitors. You should all be ashamed of yourselves, please
reconsider.

It is appalling and a disgrace to ban the blue badges. This should be revoked!



60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67

68
69
70

71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79

80

81

82

83
84
85

86

87
88
89

Page 55

Everyone should have access. Equity not equality. Inclusion is always important.

Let’s move forward, NOT backwards. York 4 All!

Try a little creative thinking. Surely you can make the city available to everyone.

We also contribute to the economy. No go equals no business equals no money.

No access not going to be shopping and supporting local businesses.

Chester has solved the problem - please speak to them!!

Please reverse this decision, makes a world of difference.

If you want visitors of all kinds, ages and ability you must consider their access
requirements.

An unnecessary restriction for already limited group.

Discrimination against disabled people which | believe is actually illegal.

This is an extremely unfair policy. Surely there is a way of dealing with this issue that does
not simply involve excluding disabled people from the city centre. Every single word that
the council writes about inclusion is a blatant lie!

| am shocked at such discrimination in my home city! Outrageous!

Please reverse this ban.

As a wheelchair user, this is extremely important to me.

Please restore ALL access for blue badge holders as soon as possible

Disability discrimination has further reaching effects than is realised.

Please rethink your plans for the closure of Castle car park.

Blue badge parking in the city centre is invaluable to us as a family

An ableist policy that actively discriminates so reverse the policy!

We both have Blue Badges and without being able to park we could not be able to visit
your wonderful city. We will talk residents into frightening people to being against
councillors against getting voted into power

Whey Hay. Residents, do you wish to all pay at least double rates and have a lonely town
centre and lose more of your cash? You have residents giving time to run St Sampsons so
it’s about time this was recognised and staff should look at photos on disabled badge
photos. We have never had to show our photo. Help!

Disability in modern era should not be a barrier to access and no reasons can justify
oppressing people.

Without access improving, | cannot get into the city to visit where we regularly used to
shop, including for essentials

| know this is very difficult but please find a way to make this work

This is short-sighted, discriminatory and a backwards policy

| live in Manchester and disabled artists | work with there know and talk and are outraged
by this. Green politicians saying they disagree with this too — York is getting known for
discriminating against disabled people at a national level!

| am a blue badge holder and entirely agree with the above request [ie the wording on
the postcard]. How can you justify discriminating against disabled people in this way
What sort of person does this?

Equity = Equality

(Visitor and work in York) The purpose of a blue badge is for individuals to get as near to
their location as possible! Complete own goal. We have millions of tourists, some of
whom will be affected by this. Why allow them to leave with a negative memory of York?
Be interested how many Council members have a disability?



90

91
92
93

94

95

96
97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107

108

109
110
111
112

113

114

115
116

Page 56

i the blue badge ban it was difficult to park. Since the blue badge constraints, we’ve not
come into York.

Society is, and should be, becoming inclusive yet makes it less so — Reverse the Ban.

We should be making life easier for people with limited mobility not more difficult
(Visitor to Minster and York Unitarians) | am concerned that these very reasonable
security concerns are disproportionately affecting those who are already at a
disadvantage in terms of access — the elderly and those with limited mobility

| live outside York but work in York with people with disabilities. |think “security
concerns” is a really lame excuse

| was born in York and lived here for 20 years. | am appalled that the city of my birth and
the county town should discriminate against disabled people. The council should resign
and each member who voted for this should be prosecuted.

York should be accessible to all

| personally feel like this is unethical. All places should be accessible and easy to park and
commute. | have noticed it is difficult access to town centre already. If the parking was
removed this would prove a bigger challenge for disabled community.

This shouldn’t even be under consideration — need access for all

You should be ashamed to be even considering closing access to disabled people
Reverse the ban please. Disabled people deserve the same rights as anyone else
Chester has designated car park for blue badge

| live near Chester and we have a designated car park for blue badge holders

Blue badges need to park

York needs to get its act together. Favour locals and cleaner streets

Disabled need access. Abled can accommodate

You're disgraceful. I'll never vote Lib Dem, Green

(visit every week) | am 83 and have a sight problem. Please think of how difficult | find
shopping with so many tables in the square

| am an ex resident of York (born & bred) but relocated to North Notts in 2009. Since
then | have been registered blind and now find on visits ‘home’ | am unable to park close
enough to the city centre to do any shopping or visit any of the familiar attractions. York
has, to my disgust, become an impossible place to visit

Access for Alll

Please reverse the ban to be inclusive and fair

Where else can they park to reach the shops!

Prior to the blue badge ban it was difficult to park. Since the blue badge constraints,
we’ve not come into York.

| travel to York a lot as | have family there and find it disgraceful that blue badge holders
and cabs cannot enter the city. Many of these people have mobility issues and you are
totally alienating them from the city, discouraging residents and the many visitors that
come to York.

My mother who has a heart condition and cannot walk far is currently unable to visit York
on our family holiday.

Please make York accessible for all.

By refusing to allow blue badge holders to park in the city centre you are discriminating
against a whole section of our community.



117

118
119
120
121

122

123

124
125

126

127

128

129

Page 57

Blue badge users need access to entrances and exits especially for blind and partially
sighted people.

This ban affects not just locals but visitors with disability.

Having a blue badge is essential.

As a blind person, this will prevent me from visiting York.

The ban leads to many people and their families being unable to enjoy the city and lead
the lives they want to lead.

This ban has adversely affected family members who are blue badge holders

We have visited York weekly for over 18 years but the ban on blue badge holders is now
spoiling our weekly outing and we feel the rest of our outings and it prevents us bringing
our grandchildren (16 of them) to learn about beautiful York. Help preserve our outings.
It is totally wrong that disabled people should be denied the splendour of York
Ultimately the action discriminates against the people who need such access. And it also
affects mental health, capacity and quality of life. Is such action as banning people who
need assistance truly a local matter? Terrorist planning will not defeat those who are
determined

It’s not, just the parking. Street cafes force people in chairs into the road. State of the
paths — camber flag stones are all conspiring to make wheelchair users feel very unsafe
Due to the restrictions | now cannot get my mother anywhere in the city for her to be
able to do her personal business, therefore taking her independence away

| used to love going to York with my daughter where my parents lived but we don’t go
now as lack of disabled parking

Disabled people should be welcome everywhere



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59
ANNEX C

Original ANNEXE O November 2021 Executive report

| am employed as a Counter Terrorism Security Advisor and work for the
North East Counter Terrorism Police. | oversee counter terrorism
protected security in York district and am a permanent member of the
CYC Counter Terrorism Task Group. For some years | have been
advising the council and private businesses on Hostile Vehicle Mitigation
(HVM) for both the city centre and some outlying venues. HVM is an
effective and proven security measure for protecting crowded places
such as the centre of York, many examples of HVM can be seen at other
large city and town centres throughout the UK. They have been put in
place to protect the public from the various terrorist attack
methodologies using vehicles. This includes vehicles that contain
explosives as well as everyday vehicles that are used to drive into
crowded areas (known as Vehicle as Weapon attacks). When
considering a vehicle access scheme involving the use of security
hardware which mitigates or prevents a vehicle gaining access to the
designated protected area, it is necessary to create a sterile zone free
from all vehicles at times when the area is a crowded place. Entry to
such areas must be restricted to emergency response vehicles which
can be done during the planning phase of any such scheme. | am aware
that CYC have a well-developed plan to introduce such a vehicle access
scheme to the centre of York, it has been subject to consultation and
has received advice from the likes of myself as well as my colleagues
from CPNI (Centre for the Protection of National Infrastructure) who
have advised on other projects nationally. To have an effective scheme
in place it would be necessary to exclude all vehicles from access to the
sterile area when it is operational ie when it is busy with pedestrians, this
unfortunately includes ‘blue badge’ holders. Terrorists plan attacks
meticulously and hold no regard to blue badge holders, they do not
follow the everyday rules that you and | would and would see the use of
a vehicle displaying a blue badge as an opportunity rather than
something that is in place to assist others. | therefore would advocate
that any vehicle having ‘blue badge’ status should be excluded from
entry to the vehicle access zone within the city centre during the times
when it is operational. | understand that the council is consulting to find
alternative parking for such vehicles as close to the city centre as is
possible and this hopefully will enable parking for ‘blue badge’ holders
and their vehicles.



Page 60

Original Annex D November 2021 Executive Report

North Yorkshire Police support for Hostile Vehicle Mitigation (HVM)
measures

Thank you for the recent invitation to meet Executive Members which
took place on Monday 6th August 2018. Following my attendance, |
would like to place on record my support, on behalf of North Yorkshire
Police, in relation to the proposed HVM measures planned for the City of
York. As | am sure you are aware, the national threat level remains at
severe. This means that a terrorist attack is highly likely and any attack
is likely to come without notice. Further, there has been a clear shift in
attack methodology, from complex pre-planned coordinated attacks such
as those seen at the World Trade Center to the more recent attacks on
mainland Europe and those in the United Kingdom where attack
planning is very basic, including the use of hire vehicles and knives as
weapons. Public spaces are currently the most favoured locations
because they have ready access to a large number of potential victims.
York has very tight streets where there are large crowds of people
regularly going about their daily business. Any attack carried out by a
vehicle is therefore likely to result in multiple fatalities and many
significant injuries. Currently there are no suitable vehicle mitigation
measures in York. My colleague, Superintendent Mark Khan, a specialist
Security Coordinator, is of the opinion that this is an unacceptable risk
for the city to carry. | would echo this view, especially when we, as public
authorities, have responsibilities in relation to the European Convention
of Human Rights (ECHR). This is particularly relevant when Article 2,
The Right to Life, is considered as this article places a positive duty on
the state (i.e. public bodies) to protect life. Hostile vehicle mitigation can
work in two ways. It can be a visible deterrent and also a physical
barrier. | am therefore in full support of the proposed measures and look
forward to continuing to support City of York Council as this work moves
forward.

Yours sincerely Superintendent Lindsey Robson Area Commander York
& Selby



Page 61 Agenda ltem 5

YORK

I ax
S ity oF
& COUNCIL

Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 7 November 2022
Management Committee

Report of the Chief Finance Officer

Budget Setting Overview
Summary

1. This report outlines the Council’'s approach to budget setting and provides
an update on some of the current financial challenges.

Recommendations
2. Members are asked to note the information in this report

Reason: To keep the Committee informed of any financial issues.
Finance Update 2022/23

3. The gross financial pressures facing the council are projected at cE8m. This
Is a significant overspend, and a great deal of work is ongoing to identify
mitigation and the further actions needed to bring current spending under
control. Finance & Performance Monitor 2 is currently being prepared and
will be presented to Executive in late November.

4. Since the budget was set in February 2022 a number of new financial
pressures have emerged. The ongoing cost of living crisis, inflationary
pressures and significant increase in energy prices have added cE5m to the
overall overspend. The 2022/23 pay award, although not yet confirmed, is
expected to cost £2.5m more than was originally estimated.

5. The regular finance and performance update reports to Executive identify
the various pressures that need to be actively monitored and managed, with
mitigating actions agreed and regularly monitored across all directorates.
Through ongoing monitoring, identification of mitigation and a review of
reserves, the Council will continue to make every effort to reduce this
forecast position, but it remains a possibility that it will not be reduced to the
point that the outturn will be within the approved budget. The Council has
£6.9m of general reserves that would need to be called on if this were the
case.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 62

A number of measures have been introduced to ensure that there are
additional expenditure controls in place, particularly around vacancy
management and the use of temporary staff. In addition, measures are
being introduced to reduce any non-essential expenditure.

All areas of the Council are currently considering where further efficiencies
and reductions in spend can be achieved in order to support the overall
financial position.

Whilst the Council’s track record of delivering savings and robust financial
management provides a sound platform to continue to be able to deal with
these future challenges there remains a significant risk to ongoing service
delivery and achievement of Council priorities that needs to be managed
effectively.

Annual Budget Setting Process

The following paragraphs outline the annual budget setting process in terms
of the legislative requirements, decision making and outline timetable.

Every council must have a balanced and robust budget for the forthcoming
financial year and also a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which
projects forward likely income and expenditure over the next 3 years. Due to
iIncome constraints and the pressure on service expenditure through
increased demand and inflation, projected expenditure is usually higher than
projected income.

Whilst such budget gaps are common in years two and three of the MTFS,
the requirement to approve a balanced and robust budget for the immediate
forthcoming year means that efforts need to be made to ensure that any
budget gap in the next financial year is closed. This is achieved by making
proposals to reduce expenditure and/or increase income. Clearly all
stakeholders will be concerned with any potential effect that these financial
decisions have on service delivery.

The annual budget report outlines the proposals that will be taken forward
and includes an overarching Equalities Impact Assessment that attempts to
look at the cumulative impact of the budget. A number of the individual
proposals will also require their own assessments and consultation with
service users which will be undertaken separately at the appropriate time.

There is a significant amount of legislation around local authority financial
planning and budgeting.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 63

The Local Government Act 2000 states that it is the responsibility of the full
council, on the recommendation of the Executive, to approve the budget and
related council tax demand.

The Local Government Act 2003, section 25 requires the council's Section
151 officer to report to the council on the robustness of the estimates made
and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves assumed in the budget
calculations.

The Local Government Finance Act 1988, section 114 requires the Section
151 officer to report to all of the authority's councillors if there is or is likely to
be unlawful expenditure or an unbalanced budget. The council must meet
within 21 days to consider the report and during that period the authority is
prohibited from entering into new arrangements that will cause money to be
spent.

Failure to set a legal budget may lead to intervention from the Secretary of
State under section 15 of the Local Government Act 1999.

The following paragraphs outline the usual annual budget setting process.
Due to the pandemic and ongoing financial uncertainty at a national level,

the timings have been slightly different over recent years but the principles
remain the same.

April to July

e Estimate revenue income and expenditure over at the next 3 years,
updating for previous years outturn position and any other information
available.

July to September

¢ |dentify any new budget pressures

e Calculate forecast budget gap (difference between forecast
expenditure and forecast income)

e Chief Officers and Heads of Service start detailed work to identify new
efficiencies and savings proposals

e Consider any capital projects needed

e Begin discussions with Executive Members as to the level and type of
savings required

October to December

e Finalise budget proposals with the Executive, including potential
impacts and risks



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 64

e Review budget in light of spending review and Local Government
Provisional Settlement and update budget assumptions for any Gowvt
announcements

December

e Executive Member Decision Sessions publish budget proposals and
allow for wider discussion with residents and other stakeholders,
including local businesses

February

e Revenue and capital budgets considered by Executive and debated at
Full Council. Council Tax is set.

Once the year starts, actual spending and income will be monitored against
the approved budgets with regular reports to Executive highlighting any
variations.

Summary / Medium Term Financial Outlook

Ordinarily, we would be able to use information provided by Government to
forecast our funding streams over a 4 year period. Whilst there would
sometimes be changes at the draft settlement in December, these would
usually be minor adjustments and we could plan with a reasonable amount
of certainty.

However, following the pandemic, cost of living crisis and changes in
leadership at a national level there is an unprecedented level of uncertainty
in terms of financial planning for local government. Given the reversal of the
Health & Social Care Levy it is expected that Adult Social Care reform and
the care cap will be deferred by at least one year. Itis also assumed that
funding for 2023/24 will be another “rollover” year. However, it is also
understood that all Government departments have been asked to identify
spending cuts for next year and it is likely that this again will have a negative
impact on local government funding.

At the time of writing the UK had just appointed its 3rd Prime Minister of
2022 and its 4th Chancellor of the last 4 months. This inevitably leads to
uncertainty and delay. The next budget is due to be announced on the 31
October, which is after the publication of this report. Therefore, any further
emerging issues will be reported verbally at the meeting.

The ongoing inflationary pressures and impact of rising prices on the Council
Is, of course, a significant concern. There is clearly also a significant impact
on the financial health of key providers and partners as well as that of
individual residents.



Page 65

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Debbie Mitchell Debbie Mitchell
Chief Finance Officer Chief Finance Officer

Tel: 01904 554161

Report Approved | x Date 25.10.22

Wards Affected: All | X

For further information please contact the author of the report
Abbreviations

MTFS Medium Term Financial Strategy



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67 Agenda Item 6

COUNCIL

Customer & Corporate Services Scrutiny 7 November 2022
Management Committee

Report of the Director of Governance

Scrutiny Review Support Budget 2023/24
Summary

1. This report sets out the current position in relation to available Council
funding for research in support of scrutiny review work.

2. Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management Committee
(CCSMC) has a constitutional right, under its delegated authority, to
consider and recommend to the Executive a budget for scrutiny research.
This report seeks to consult Members on any recommendations it may
wish to make to the Executive prior to the budget setting process for
2023/24.

Background

3. Since February 2011, Scrutiny has been allocated a research support
budget for reviews in the sum of £5k per annum. In previous years, that
budget has either been shared out across each Scrutiny Committee or
retained for use by CCSMC as appropriate.

4. In making its recommendations on this budget to Budget Council for the
last few financial years, this Committee has debated at some length the
merits of potentially asking Council to increase this support budget to
enable more outward facing scrutiny to take place. In light of the low
spend reported below consistently against this budget, the Council has
continued to allocate an annual sum of £5k.

5. The impact of the Covid 19 pandemic on scrutiny activity and resources
available to support any activity has affected spend and what work has
been possible to undertake.

Analysis

6. In this current financial year to date 2022/23, there has been no spend
against this budget which, at this stage, again demonstrates a continuing
trend and one which is unlikely to change for the remainder of the



Page 68

financial year given the comparatively small, dedicated resource available
to support scrutiny. Members will recall that new working arrangements,
to continue some scrutiny activity, were introduced during the pandemic,
namely the introduction of informal Scrutiny Forums meeting remotely,
with a reduced number of mainline public Committee meetings. In March
2022, Council approved revised Scrutiny Procedural Rules, broadly
confirming a pattern of scrutiny meetings and arrangements to reflect the
resource available to support to it. Even prior to the pandemic, this
Committee had received reports for several years outlining a declining
spend on external scrutiny research activity.

Historically, there has been no spend against this budget since 2016/17,
when this Committee allocated the available budget to cover required
training costs for newly-appointed Scrutiny Chairs, to reflect new working
arrangements which accompanied the amended scrutiny structure at that
time. This training also doubled up as refresher training in scrutiny skills
and feedback from those Members attending at the time was extremely
positive. Total costs for this training amounted to £1,426.40.

Irrespective of recent changes to scrutiny arrangements, to demonstrate
the historical pattern of low spend against this budget for a number of
years, the position is as follows:

. 2010/11 - £380

. 2011/12-£0

« 2012/13 - £1,500 (health workshop facilitation)
. 2013/14-£0

« 2014/15 - £2,500. Following a decision by this Committee in January
2015, the available budget was again used for scrutiny training
purposes i.e.:

> 3 cross party Members (and 2 officers) travelling to and attending
the Annual Centre for Public Scrutiny Studies Conference and
Awards;

» £1k contribution to Leeds City Council to cover the cost of running
the regional Joint Health & Overview Scrutiny Committee; and

» Some travel expenses for a Councillor attending an event in
London to gather information for an ongoing scrutiny review; and

» 2 Members attending a Pupil Premium Conference

2015/16 - £350 in relation to support costs for the Tour De France
Scrutiny Review.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 69

Given the use of IT facilities and the internet in recent years as essential
research tools, it is noticeable that there has been no need to ‘buy in’ paid
external research in relation to the chosen reviews which have taken
place. Significantly, any external research support engaged for scrutiny in
the last decade has been at no cost to the Authority, as a result of the
willingness on the part of external ‘specialists’ to engage freely with the
Council. Such examples would be the Bootham Park Hospital review
completed by the former Health & Adult Social Care Policy & Scrutiny
Committee in September 2016 and academic support provided by the
University of York and The Joseph Rowntree Foundation on various
reviews.

Member Training

As reported in paragraphs 7 and 8 above, this particular research budget
has sometimes been used for specific training on scrutiny, when there has
been little or no spend in relation to specific research work.

There is, however, a specific budget set aside for Member Training.
Annually, this amounts to £5k and is often supplemented specifically for
an induction year of newly elected Members.

Prior to the start of the pandemic, Scrutiny Chairs and Vice Chairs had
planned to discuss the potential for specific scrutiny training for scrutiny
members, looking at the possibility of utilising funds from this budget for
the specific purpose. However, this Committee has acknowledged that
any training for Scrutiny Members would now be best addressed as part of
the full induction round following the forthcoming local elections in May
2023.

Consultation

No consultation was required on this report at this stage, given that it
provides this Committee with their constitutional opportunity to consider
making a recommendation to Executive for a research support budget for
scrutiny.

Options
Having regard to the analysis section in this report, Members can
(i) to note the position and recommend to Executive not to provide any

budget specifically to support external research and consultancy
work for scrutiny in 2023/24 onwards; or



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 70

(i) to recommend Executive retains the current budgetary support for
external research and consultancy work, explaining why; or

(i) to recommend Executive increases the current budgetary support for
external scrutiny research/consultancy, explaining why and
suggesting an appropriate figure.

Council Plan 2019-23

Whilst this report does not in itself materially affect how the work of
scrutiny can support and develop the Council’s overall priorities to set out
in the new Council Plan 2019-23, how scrutiny organises itself and
undertakes its activities could have a significant impact on how it
contributes to the Council’s development.

Implications

Financial — There would, of course, continue to be some financial impact
should this Committee recommend continuing with a scrutiny research
support budget, if the Executive supported that proposal. If funding
continues at a comparatively low level as currently provided, then that
impact would be minimal in comparison to the potential benefits of
receiving any support, if required. However, in times of financial constraint
upon all Councils following the pandemic, Members would be prudent to
consider the recommendation of any funding most carefully for 2023/24,
given the lack of spend over many consecutive years.

There are no Human Resources, Equalities, Legal, Information
Technology, Crime & Disorder or other implications associated with the
recommendations in this report. Constitutionally, this Committee has the
right to recommend to Executive an appropriate budget to support scrutiny
research.

Risk Management

Clearly, this Committee needs to address what it believes the current and
future needs of scrutiny may be, taking into account the historical levels of
spend and any potential impact on improvements to Council
performance/services.

Conclusions

It is clear that there has been very little call on this budget spend since
2009/10 and that it has become a continuing trend for the budget not to be



20.

21.

22.

Page 71

required to be spent on external research or consultancy. Rather in
recent years this Committee and other Scrutiny Committees have looked
to diversify and seek to use the funds in alternative ways.

The reasons for this are diverse as referenced in this report. In part it is
also due to the topics chosen in recent times and to a decreasing number
of those running up to a local election year.

It is difficult to envisage scrutiny needing to call upon this particular budget
in the coming year given the information contained in this report.

Recommendations

Members are asked to consider what recommendation to make to the
Executive in relation to a scrutiny support budget for use on external
consultation/market research, for consideration as part of the Council’s
budget setting process for 2023/24

Reason: To address the Committee’s constitutional right to comment
to Executive on setting the above scrutiny budget.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Dawn Steel Bryn Roberts
Head of Civic & Director of Governance

Democratic Services

Tel No. (01904) 551030 Report Approved | v'| Date 24 October 2022

Specialist Implications Officer(s)
None

Wards Affected:

All | v

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers: None

Annexes: None



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Work Plan Page 73 Agenda Item 7

Scrutiny Date Agenda
Area
CSMC 07/11/2022 1) City Centre Access Strategy Update

2) F&P Monitor 2
3) Budget Setting Process Overview
4) Scrutiny Research Budget

HASC/CEC 9/11/2022 - 1) Draft Autism Strategy

Commissioned POSTPONED 2) Healthy child update
FROM 27/09/22

E&P 14/11/2022 1) Digi ResPark

Commissioned

HASC 22/11/2022 1) Recommissioning of the Sexual Health
Service

2) Update on the Care Quality Commission
(CQC) inspection that took place at York
hospital in March.

3) TEWV Foss Park update

Commissioned 05/12/2022
HCS 07/12/2022 1) Q2 Monitor

2) Update on how the Housing team is
supporting tenants with the impact of the
cost of living increase, e.g. rent arrears

3) Biannual Safer York Partnership update

CC 13/12/2022 1) Local Area Energy plan — discussion
and comments on the draft plan

2) CYC corporate emissions/performance
data

3) Update on LED conversions and what'’s
next (Solar lights trial)

4) Update on pollinator strategy — covering
the alternative weed treatment trial,
pesticides and mow/no mow — plan and
outcomes)

5) Bio Yorkshire

HASC 14/12/2022 1) ICS Update / Overview
Commissioned
CEC 20/12/2022 1) YMT new Chief Executive, Vision,

progress and performance

2) Financial Monitor Q2

3) Behaviour and attendance in schools

4) Update on Community & Family Hubs &
Holiday Food / HAF programme

Commissioned 21/12/2022
CsSMC 09/01/2023 1) Complaints Annual Review (confirmed)
2) Schedule of Petitions

3) Council Motions Update




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 City Centre Access - Action Plan Update
	Annex A
	Annex B
	Annex C

	5 Budget Setting Overview
	6 Scrutiny Review Support Budget 2023/24
	7 Work Plan

